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NOTICE

Motice is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General
Me=ating of the members of the company will be heid
on Saturday the 24" September, 2016 at 10,30 AM at
Grand Hotel, MG Road Cochin to transact the
following business,

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.To receive, consider and adopi! the audiied
financial slatemants inchuding audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the
Financial Yaar ended 31" March, 2016 logether with
the Reporis of the Board of Directors and Auditors
{heraan.

2 To declare a dividend an Equity Shares.

3. To-appaint a Director in place of Mr, C V Rappai
{DIN = 02011057} who refires by rotation and belng
eligible offers imself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. M M Abdul
Basheer (DIN— 00120916} who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himselffor reappaintment.

5. To consider and, if thought fit, approve with or
without modification (5) the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLYED that, pursuant to Seactions 138,142 and
alhwr applicable provisions of the Companies Acl,
2013 and tha Rules made thereunder, as amanded
from Hime o lime, pursuant to the resciution passed
by tha mambers at the AGM hald on 26.08.2015 and
recommendations of the Board of Direclors, the
appointment of Vama & Varma, Chartered
Accountants {Firm Registration No.0045325) as
Auditors of the Company o hold office from the
conclusion of this Annual Genearal Mesting (AGM) Ll
the conclusion of the 10" Annual General Mesting of
lhe Company to be hald in the yaar 2017 be and is
hereby ratified and that the Board of Diraciors be and
is haraby authanzed to ik the remunaration payabla
o the Auditors for the Finmancial Year ending
31.03.2017 as may be detarminad by the Board of
Diractors m consullation with the Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Election of Director

6. To consider and if thought fit approve with or
without modification(s} the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution :

RESOLVED that pursuance to Seclion 152 and
other applicable provisians, if any, of the Companies
Ack 2013 read with Companies | Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rukes, 2074 ( including
amy statutory modification(s ) or enactment(s) thareof
far the time being in force) Smi. M Beena 1AS { DIN
N3483417) who was appointed as an Additional
Director with effect from 20,02.20116 by the Board of
Directors of the Company and who in ferms of

Section 161 of the Companies Act. 2013 holds office
upto the date of this Annual General Mesting. and in
respect of whom the Company has received &
notice inwriting from & member under secton 160 of
the Companies Act, 2013 propasing her candidature
far the office of Director be and iz hereby appointed
a5 a8 Mon-Executive Directar of the Company, liable
1o retire by rotation,

Acceptance of Deposit

7. To consider and, if thought [, lo pass, with or

withoul modificationis), tha following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuand to the provisions of
Seclions T3 and Sacllon 76 and all ather applicable
provisions i any of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act’) read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014, as may ba amended from
fime 1o time and other applicable provisions, If any,
arwd subject to such rules as the Central Government
may, in consultation with Reserve Bank of India
prascribe and subject 1o such other conditions,
approvals, permissions, as may be pecessarny, in
conlinuation o the approval accorded by the
members at the Exira Crdinary General Meating
held on the 257 July 2016, e consenl of tha
members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded (o the Company and the Board of Directors
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which lerm
shall be deemed to inclede any Committee thereol)
be and ks hereby authorized to invite! accepl’ renaw
from lmie o ime unsecured deposits from the Public
and [ or Membars of the company bayond the 24" of
September 2016, within permissible lmits as
proscribed under Rule 32)(b) of the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposils) Rules, 2014 and the
overall borrowing limils of the Company, as
approved by the Membars, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. T. Balakrishnan,
the Managing Director be and iz hereby authorzed
1o ssue an advertisement in Form DPT-1 a3 required
under Rule 4(1) and 4(2), after approval by the Board
of Directors and to publish the same in an English
newspaper {in Englishlanguage) and in a vermacular
newspaper {In wernacukar language) having wide
clreulation In the state of Kerala wherein the
Registered Office of the Company s situated

RESOQLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorised (o take necessary steps for
invitelaccept! renaw from time to time unsecured
depasits from the members andf or public and o do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in
its absolute discretion, deem necassary, proper or
desirable or such invitation/acceptance/ renewal of
Deposits by the Company and o setble any
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questions, difficulties or douhts that may arise in this
regand and o file all such necessary forms with the
Registrar of Companies and fo execule all
necessary documents, applications, refurns and
writings as may be pecessary, proper, desirable or
expedient in accordance with the provisions of
Section 73 Section 76 and all ofther applicable
provigions if any of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the
Act™) read with Companies [Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2074 as may be amended from time o time
and other applicable provisions, ifany,

28072018 By Ordar of the Board
Cochin Sl
K Padmadasan
Company Sacratary

Moles

1. A memberentiled to attend and vole al the
Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”)
may appaint a proxy lo attend and vole on a
poll instead of himself and the proxy need
not be a8 member of the Company. The
insfrument appointing the praxy should,
however, be deposited at the registersd
affice of the Company nol less than forby-
gight hours before the commencameant of
the Meeting.

A parson can act as a proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total shara capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. A& member haolding
more than tan percent of the fotal shara
capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint & single person &s proxy and
such parson shall nol act as a proxy for any
other person orshareholdar,

2. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, relating to tha
Special Business o be transacled at the
Meeting is annexed hereto,

3. Members are requested to hand over the
enciosed attendance slip, duly signed in
accordance with their specimen signature
{5} registerad with the Company for
admission 1o the meeling hall whera tha
Annual General Meeling is proposed to be
held.

4. Dividend recommended by the Board of
Directors, If approved by the members atthe
Annual General Maeting will be paid after
the 24" September 2016 1o those members
whose names appear on the Company's
Register of Membsars as on 23 Saptember
2016,
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5. Members may note that dividends not

ancashed or claimed within seven years and
0 days from the date of declaration of the
dividend, will, as per Section 124 read with
Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013, ba
fransferred to the Investor Education and
Prataction Fund of Governmaent of India.
& few members have not ancashed their
dividend pertaining fo the dividend declared
for the financial year endad 31% March,
2010 | 317 March, 2014 and 31" March,
2015,  Members who wish o cilaim
dividends, which remain unclaimed, -ara
requested 1o correspond with the company,
It may be noted that once the amounts in tha
unpasd dividend account are transferred to
the IEPF, no claim shall lie against the [EPF
or the Company in respect thereof and tha
Members would lose their right to claim such
dividend.

6. Mambers, who have not registered their e-
mall addresses so far, are requested to
register their e-mail address for receiving all
communication including Annual Report,
Maotices, Circulars, efc. from the Company
electronically.

7. As a measure of austerity, copies of thea
Annual Report will not be distnbuted al tha
Annual General Meeting. Members are
tharafore requestad o bring thair copies of
the annual report o the Maeating,

8. Afewshareholders are yet io exchange their
share cerlificales with the naw ones
conseguent to the subdivision of face values
of shares. Members who attend the AGM
may bring the old cerificates for exchanga
with new cerliflcates. The. remaining
cerfificates would be posted to the
respeciive shareholders thereafier

STATEMENT PURSUANT TOSECTION 102(1) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”)

The following Staterment sets oul all material facls
relating fo the Special Business mantioned in the
accompanying Mofice:

Item No.B

SmL M Beena IAS was appointed as an addilional
director of the company an 20° February 2016 by the
Board of Directors of the company. According o thea
provisions of seclion 161 of the Companies Act
2013, she holds office as director anly up to the date
of the ensuing Annual Genedal Meeting. As requirsd
by section 160 of the Act, a notice has been received
from a member signifying his intantion to proposa
appointment of SmL M Beena |AS as a Direclor
along with a deposit of Rs. 1,00,000/-. The Board
considers it desirable that the company should
continue to avall iself of her services
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Excapl, Smi. M Beana IAS no other directors of the
company are concerned or inlerested n the
proposed resoiution

ltem No.7

The Board of Directors of the Company at their
meating held on 22.06.2016; approved acceptance
of deposiis from the Public and Shareholders,
subject to the provisions of the Act and provisions of
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
including approval by the members by 8 special
resalution. The members at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on the 237 July, 2016
approved by a special resolulion acceptance of
depasits by the Company as proposed.

Annual Report
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The approval as above shall expire on conclusion of
the 117 Annual General Mesting. It i proposed to
continue - acceplting deposits, and the Board of
DirectorsManaging Direclor |5 proposed 1o ba
authorized to accept deposits within the specified
limit, subject fo compliance of the laid down
procedures in the Act and hence the proposal,

Mone of the Directors or Key Managenal Personnal
of the Company, incleding their relatives, is
interestad in the resolution.
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are happy to present the 9° Annual Report of your Company, for the Financial Year ended 31st March,

2016,
FINANCIALRESULTS

The Financial performance of your Company, for the vearended March 31, 2016 s summarized below!
The consolidated performance of the subsidiarkes and associate companies viz, INKEL-KSIDC Projects Limbted,

INKEL-KINFRA Infrasiructure Projects Limited, INKES Trade Centre Limited, MIV Logistics Private Limlied and
SEGURD -INKEL Consortium LLP for the same year are also given below

(Rs. In lacs)
Stand Alone Consolidated
2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
Total Income 30,86,66,435 | 4541,90,970 | 58,51,38,598 | 55,05,33,025
Total expenditure 20,54,17,2468 | 29.58.24,215 | 42,30,01,782 | 42,33,3&,769
Profit before Depreciation & Tax 21,0404 708 | 17,63,73,680 | 20,01,89,485 | 16,12,97,134
Legs ; Depreciation 1,71,55,609 1,80,06,925 | 38142679 | 34101978
Profit before Tax 10,32,40,189 | 1583 66,755 | 16,20,46,816 | 12.71,95,156
Less - Tax B,71,03,315 5,5536,198 | 66723065 | 54776352
Less: Profit!Loss of Associate - | (6,38,48,322) | (3,95,17,210)
Profit for the year 126145874 | 102830,557 | 314754208 | 32901534
Dividend: Core Infrastruciure sector of Bridges and

The Board has recommended a final dividend of
40 paise Perequit'y' share for the Financial Year
ended 31" March, 20116. The proposal is subject
to the approval of ithe shareholders at the
ensuingAnnual General Meeting.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company
is Rs, 2,00, 00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred
Crore) divided into 200000000 (twenty crore)
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each.
The issued, subscribed and pakd up capital of
the Company is Rs.1,63,02,70,000/-, divided
into 16,30,27.000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
The Company has appointed Mis. BgSE
Financials Limited, Bangalore, as Registrar
and Transfer Agents for providing electronic
connectivity with NSDL and to handle physical
share transfer work,

OPERATIONS
Your Company hitherto was concentrating on
establishing and running  industrial parks,

logistics and general consultancy. The year
witnessed the entry of your Company into the
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Roads. In addition, the Company venturad into
Solar, Agricullure and also gave a new thrust for
Consultancy.

BERIDGE PROJECTS

In association with Seguro Foundations and
Structures Private Limited, the Company has
completed a Bridge Project of Rs. 14.19
Crore al Aluva Manappuram. This was the
sacond project taken up by the Limited Liability
Partnership firm floated by the Company
with Sequro. The first bridge project {Cost @
Rs.72.54 Crores) across the Vembanad Kayal,
connecting Willington Island to EdaKochi is
nearing camplation. The third bridge project at
Kainakary In Alappuzha District across Pamba
river (Project cost Rs. 22 14 er) is progressing.
The fourth bridge project of the joint venture  al
Station Kadavu, across the Periyar, in
Ernakulam District, (Project Cost; 23 Crores) is
also progressing. The joint ventura has won its
fifth bri _Iga project at Vallamkadav across
Pariyar. Total Project cost is Rs.22.25 crores.
The project is expacted (o be awarded any
time.
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ROAD PROJECT

INKEL in consortium with M/s EKK & Company
bid and wona project to implament 58 kms of
road and allied infrastructure in Kottayam and
Thiruvananthapuram Districls under Annuity
scheme. A Special Purpose Vehicle INKEL -
EKK Roads Frivate Limited has been
incorporated for execution of the Project, The
Project cost iz Hs. 16147.83 lacs. This
sub&idiarﬁ' with an authonzed capital of Rs.25
Crore will be a 50:50 joint venlure between
INKEL and ERKK. The road pm%&ct iz to be
execuled’ for the Hoad Infrastructure
Corporation of Kerala Limited (RICK).

INKEL BUSINESS PARK

Inthe wake of the successful implemeantation
of Tower |, INKEL Tower 1l with allocable space
of 2.1 Lac E%ﬂ was completed inrecord time of
480 days, 45 days ahead of the scheduled
date of completion. Almost 25 per cent of the
space has since been leased and we have
targeted leasing the remaining space during
the current financial year. Going by the spate
of enquiries this is achievable.

The Business Park at Angamali iz %radually
turning to be a favoured destination for business
enterprises of all nature. We propose 1o go for
Towers Il & IV and another building for start
ups, These along with an amenity centre will
account for around 7 lakh sq ft of buill up space
in the next eightean to twenty four months.

Simultaneously as the construction of Towers ]
& IV, Start Up Building and the Amenifies Centra
agre taken up, we propose fo consider joint
venture proposals for developing the remaining
areaofland.

INKEL GREENS

Al Malappuram, the development process
continued, though much headway could not be
madea with regard to external infrastructure like
connectivity from the town, water and electricity.
The 23 units to whom developed plots andior
bulidings have been |easad continued to
function smoothly. During the year 5 uniis wene
leased plots for selting up their units,

Your Directors are happy to report that the
Government has re-aliotted to the JV, INKEL
KSIDC 45 acres of land which had, in batweaan,
been released to English and Foreign
Languages Universiiy.

Marketing efforts have been redoubled to lease
larger piots to entrepreneurs, though this
mission had suffered a temporary setback when
a major organization with whom the Company
had been discussing over the past one year,
pulled out for their intermnal reasons.
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CONTAINER FREIGHT STATION

Revenue from this umit during the year under
raport registerad 49.85 Per cant Increase over
that of the previous year, Cochin Port has
registered some improvement in traffic during
the year bul not o the extent that revenus
generalion in our CSF would register
substaniial improvement.

During the year the Company invested
Rs.14.03 Crores as Preference Capital
{10.75%), to reduce the burden of the long term
borrowing from the State Bank of Travancora.
With this investment, i would be possible for the
unit to meet the SBT commitments on sarvicing
of the loan and contribute for repaymeant.

TRIVANDRUM PROJECT

The Project could not make much progress
during the year. The Corporation of
Thiruvananthapuram is processing our
application for building permit, since, in
betwean, the area where the plot is located
needed to be changed info commercial zone as
against the present zoning a3 industrial. This
process is in the final stages and we ara hopeful
of starting the project any time soon. The project
will be implementad by a joint venture of the
Company and Kerala State Industrial
Enterprises Limited and will have 2 lac square
feet of commercial space, very close fo the
Thiruvananthapuram Ceniral Railway Station,

CONSULTANCY & PMC SERVICES

During the year the Company reactivated its
consultancy division and immediale results
have been achieved. The Government of
Kerala has appointed yvour Company as one of
the agencies for PMC, Feasibility Studies, DPR
Freparation, Management Consultancy and
Transaction Advisory Services for the Industries
Departmenl. Your Company has dons
Consultancy Services for the Planning Board,
KSIDC, Kerala Veterinary & Animal Science
University, Palakkad Municipality and others.
Assignments for the Planning Board, Kerala
Coir Corporation and others are on hand.

The PMC work entrusted to the Company by the
=pices Board at Bodynaikannore, Tamil Madu,
has been completed, which Iz the first work
done outside the state of Kerala.

S0OLAR

Your Company has signad up with Vikram Solar
for supply of solar panels and &lso another EPC
contractor for undertaking the work. The
Company is now implemanting High Mast
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Street [ighting for the Kongod Panchayat at
Palakkad at a cost of Rs.72 Lakhs., Several
Projects are now under final stage of discusszion
and one or two major projects are expected o
matarialize in the next three months. Tha
Company has bagged a prestfigious project of
Solar Street light at Ponkunnam-Pala-
Thodupuzha Foad with a fotal project cost of
Rs.7.31 Crores.

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT

This is  another new area the Company has
ventured into during the Financial Year. The
Company has won the first contract from an
optical chain. There is dearth of professional
organizations to handle this service area and
yvour Company is equipping itself with
manpower to abtain major contracts.
COMMERCIALAGRICULTURE

Commercial cultivation is turning out 1o ba a
lucrative revenue stream in the State and your
Company has  wventured inlo commercial
cultivation in three areas where your Company
owns land directly or through the JVs,

Venturing into Commercial Agriculture is also
aimed at ulilizing land parcets where there is no
scope forimmediate development.

Al Piravom, where your Company owns §
acres, open precision farming in 3.5 acres is
compleled. The crops include Red Lady
Papaya, Walter Melon (Seediess), Banana and
Rambutan, The one Polyhouse at Piravam
{10,000 =q ft} has produced approximately One
Tone of vegetables during the last two months.

Malappuram Polyhouses (10,000 =q ft each)
have given an initial vield of 1.3 T of vegetables
inthe last threa months..

Al Palakkad, as per the mandate given by the
Government we have mobilized available land
for developing industrial parks. The land is
under development and we are processing
approvals from the Govemment for holding
tham. Further lands would be acquired subject
to resources and for consolidation.

In the meanwhile, we are currently proceeding
with plans for open farming. Initially an area of
96 acres have been identified, on which mango,
coconut, tamarind and gooseberry are to be
planted in 20 acres. It is proposed to plant high
yielding crops in the remaining area. It is also
proposed to set up a AgroMarket at Palakkad,
which will be a Super market for all agri refated
tems.,
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Particulars of loans, guarantees or
investments

Being a company &nrga%ad in the business of
providing infrastructure facilities, provisions of
Section 186 is not applicable to the company.
Howeavwver the loans, guaranteas or investmen
covered under the Section form part of the
Motas to the financial statements provided in
this Annual Report.

Transfer to reserves

We pru]pnse to transfer Bs. ¥, 84, 86,185- to the
eneral reserve on account of declaration of
vidand.

Public Deposit

The company has not accepted any fixed
deposit and as such no amount of principal and
interes! was outstanding as on date of the
Balance Sheet

Particulars of contracts or arrangements
made with related parties

Particulars of contracts or arra ments with
refated parties referred to in Section 188(1) of
the CﬂrnganiEE Act 2013, in the prescribed form
ADC = 2. is appended as Annexura 2 o the
Board's Report.

Material change and commitments affecting
financial position

There have been no malterial changel
commitments affecting financial position of the
company between the end of the financial year
and date of the report,

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate
Companies

As on 31° March 2016, the company has 5
subsidiaries and 3 associates. t of the 5
subsidianes, 2 ara under dormant slatus, viz.
Thalikulam PURA Private Limited and
Tirurangadi PURA Private Limited, the two
SPVs incorporated for implemantation of the
PURA Fropecis, Despite our best efferis, there
has been no progress in this Project, The main
iszue has been denial EF the State Nodal
Agencies funds for some of the projects where
the funding is jointly to be done by the Gok, Gol
and the Company.

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the
Companies Act 2013, we have prepared
consolidated financial statements of the
company which forms part of this Annual
Report. Further a stalement containing the
salient features of the financial statements of
our subsidianes fassociates in the prescnbed
format AQC -1 s appendad as Annaxura — 1 to
this Report.
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In accordance with Section 136 of the
Companies Act 2013, the audited financial
statements, including the consolidated financial
statements and related information of the
company and the audifed accounts of the
subsidiaries are available on our websile
whsninkal.in.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Corporate” governance is about maximizing
shareholder value legaily, ethically and

sustainably. Qur Corporate Govermance Report
for the FY 2015-16 forms part of this report

Number of meetings of the Board

The Board met 4 imeas during the financial year,
the details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report. The maximum interval
between any bwo meetings did not exceed 120
days, as prescribed inthe Companies Act 2013,

Declaration by Independent Directors

The company has recelved necessary
deciaration from each Independent Director
under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act
2013 stating that hel/she meets the criteria of
mﬂ:rrsdanne as provided in sub-section (6) of

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Appointment

Cwering the Financial Year, Smt. M Beena |AS,
was appointed as Additional Director of your
Company. amt. M Beena is proposzed to be
appointed as a Non Executive Director of your
Company at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. Your Directors recommend her
appointment as a Non Executive Director of
your Company

Re-appointment

As per the provisions of the Companies Acl,
2003 Mr. © V Rappal and Mr M M Abdul
Basheer retire by rotation at the ensulng Annual
General Meeting and baing eligible seeks
reappointment. The Board recommends their
reappolntment.

Key Managerial Personnel

ahri T Balakrishnan, Managing Director, Shri K
Padmadasan, Company Secretary and Shri
George Raphaal, General Manager [ Finance &
Accounts) are the key managernial personnel of
your Company in accordance with the
provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies { Appointment and

Annual Report

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014,

Committees of Board

Currently, the Board has 4 committess © the Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committes, Corporate Soclal Responsibility
Committese and Shara Transfer Commitiee. All the
committess areduly constituted,

Internal financial control and its adeguacy

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for
ansuring the ordesy and afficient conirol of its
business.

Significant and Materlal Orders

There are no-significant and material orders passed
by the requiators or courts or fribunals impacting the
going concern status and company's operations in
futura,

Extract of Annual Return

In accordance of Section 134(3)a) of the
Companes Act 2013 an exiract of Annual Returm in
the prescribed format is attached as Annexiere to this
regort,

Directors’ Responsibllity Statement
The directors confirm that

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2018, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out
undier Schedula [l o the Aci, have bean followed
and there are no matesial departures from the same;

b} the Directors have selected such accounting
podicies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudant so 85 1o give a trua and fair view of the stale
of affairz of the Company as at March 31, 2016 and of
the profit of the Company for the year ended on that
date;

) the Directors have faken proper and sufficlent care
for tha maintenance of adequaie accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safequarding the assets of tha Company and for
preventing and delecting fraud and other
imagularitias;

d} the Directars have preparad the annual accounts
on a ‘golng concern' basis;

&) the Directors have lald down Internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adeqguate and ane
aperating effectivaly; and

f) the Dwectors have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such sysiems are adequate
ardd cperatng effectively
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Auditors
STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the Annual General Meeting held on 26" August,
2015 Mi's, Varma & Varma Charlered Accountants
wara appaointed as the Statutory Audilors of tha
company fo hold office fill the conclusion of the
Annual Ganeral Meating to ba hield in the vaar 2019,
In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013
the appoiniment of Auditors shall be placed for
ratification at every Annual General Mesting.
Accordingly, appointment of Mis. Varma & Yarma
Chartered Accountanis, as Siatutony Auditors of the
company & placed for ratification by the
shareholders.

The Auditors Report for the financlal year 201516
doas nol contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remarks. The Auditors' Report is enclosed
with the fimancial statements in this Annual Raport.

EECRETARIALAUDITORS

Mis. Gopi Mohan, Satheasan & Associates,
Practizsing Company Secretanes were appainted to
conduct Secratarial Audit of the company for tha
financial vear 2015-16. The Secretarial Audit Report
for the fmancial year ended March 31, 2016 is
annexed herewlth marked as Annexure V 1o this
Raporl. Tha Practicing Company Secrelary has
made cbsersation with regard o hobding of AGM
outside the city'town where the Registered Offica of
the company i3 situatied

The Board has the commant thal the Registerad
Office of INKEL 5 oulside the lmnit of the Kochi
Corporation, The Seclion does not specify whal s
the city limits. For Cochin, there ara af least six

points which need to be considerad apart from the
geagraphical im-saparation: A). Postal Zone Limils.

o8
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B). . City Police Limits. C). Town Bus Limiis DO},
Telephone Code 0484 E). Greater Cochin concepts
amd F), Urban Conglomerafion decided by the
Governmeant of India for the purpese of deciding the
DA and perquisites of employees. All these factors
comverge Io the view that a mesting held following
any of the sewen oriteria above would met the
requirement of the Section. INKEL with [tz registered
affice at Cochin 682 021 has held ils AGM &t an
address with the postal zone Cochin 682 015, This
also i fina with the circular issued by Deparment of
Company Affairs No. 1780 - CL-V, dated 16802/81,
wherein it was clarified that mestings of a Company
can be held at any place within the postal kmits or
ocal limits of the city, town or village in which the
regisiered office of the company ls siluated and
whera thesa two limit do not codncide, within the
wider of the two limits.

Conservation ol En Technol Absorption
and Forelgn Exchange Earnings and Dutgo

The parliculars relating to conservation of energy,
technology absorption, foreign exchange eamings
and outgo, as required o be dischosed under the Act,
ara provided in Annexuwre to this Report.

Your Directors further state that during the year
urder review, thene were nd cases flled pursuant to

the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
[(Prevention, Prohibition and RedressaljAct, 2013,

Faor and an behalf of the Board of Diraciors

T. Balakrishnan M. M4, Abdul Bashear
Managing Director Chrector
Coachin

2B.07 2018
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Amount in Rz,
Mame of Associate | joint Venture MV Laglstics SEGURG-INKEL INKEL — EKK Roads
Private Limited Consortium LLP Private Limited
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31032016 3032016 Incorparated in 21.01.2016
Shares of Associatedjoint venture hald
by thia company on the year end
L s 1.18,29.714 - 3000
Amount of Investimant: 11.82.87.140 4 50,000 30,000
Extend aof holding 3943 45 30
Dwscription of how thare |5 Cantrals mone than | Controls mone than Contrals mone than
significant influence 20% of total 20% of total 20% of folal
shara capital share capital share capital
Reason why associalefaint veniurs
is nat consolidatad fdA, MA Since il & incorporated
in the year 21.04.2016 the
151 financial year ands
on 31.03.2017
Met worth atfributable to shareholding
as par [atest avdiled Balance Sheet 18,14, 55277 TH,45,040 (5,67.530)
ProfitLoss for the year
I. cansidered In consolidation (6,38 48 322) 59 47 407 0
Il ol considerad in consolidation (10.15.85,032) 72,69,053

Motes:

1. Mame of associate which is yel o commance operation ; INKEL — EEK Roads Privata Limited.
2. Mame of associate which have bean liguidaled or sold dunmg the yaar @ NIL
FORM NO. AOC -2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act 2013
including certain arms length transactions under third provison thereto

1. Detalls of confracts or arrangements of Iransactions ot al arm's length basis @ NIL

2. Details of material contracts or ammangement or transactions at arm's length basis

{8} | Name of refated Party and nature Mr. Varghese Kurian, Direcior INKEL
of relationship :

{b} | Mature of contracta/arrangements/
transactions Contract for providing Lift

(¢} | Duration of the coniracis/
arrangementsiransaciions 180 days

Sabient ferms of the contracts or
arrangements or fransactions
including the value, if any

{d}

The work essentially consists of d
manufaciure, testing before dispatch, deli
erection, tesling, commissioning and putting into operation
2 nos. of passenger lits and 1 no service §ft. The total
amount for the work is Rg. 08 23 TS0,

esign, enginesnng

fo site,

{¢) | Date of approval by the Board

20112015

{fi | Amount paid as advance if any

ML

10
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
(Pursyant to Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013)

1.  Brief Dutline of Company's CSR Policy

Corporate Socdal Responsibllity i the sense of
rasponsibility towards the community and
anvironment in which L operates. [Uis the continu
commitment by business o behave ethically a
conbribute io economic developmeant of the socely at
large and. building capacity for sustainable
lIvelioods.

The Company believes in conducting its business
responsibly, fairly and ina most ranspanent mananer.
It continually seeks ways 1o bring aboul an overall
positive mpact on the society and  anviroameanl
where it operates and as a part of Its social
objeclives.

2. CSRCommittes:

The Corporate Sccial Responsibliity (CSR)
Committea of the Board iz responsibla for
-::nmr*sa&lr_tl_g the execution of company's CSR
policles. The members of the CSR Commiltes ane |

Shiri Varghase Kurian
Skt M M Abdul Bashasr
Shrt Mandakurmaran P

3, Average net En:rﬁl. of the company for last
throo years : Rs. B81.52 lakhs.

4, Prescribed CSR Expenditure : Rz, 17 63las
(2% of the amount as in item 3 above)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial
year

e amount of Rs. 1.85 lacspertaining o the FY 2014
=16 was spent during the curent linancial year. Tha
project was construction of a Bus 5 roat
Konompara, Malappuram Districl. The project was
taken up throdigh the subsidiary- INKEL =KSIDC
Projects Limited.

6. Incase company has failed to spend 2 % of
average nel profit of the last 3 years,
reasons forthe same :

Some of the projects identified could notl ba moved
forward because of ceraln local kevel clearances.
During the current year, the Company has taken on
hand construction of a road In  Vadakarapathy
Panchayat, Palakkad District, which is expectad to
benefit a large population. Major part of the
canslruclion s over and the remaining partion will ba
completed before the end of Seplember since thene
has bean interruplion doe to the rains. The
axpanditure |5 expecied 1o be In the region of Rs_ 15
lacs. We are committad to wtilizing the full available
limit as early as possible.

7. Responsibility statement of the CSR
Committes :

he Commitles hereby affiem thal the CSE Policy, as
approved by the Board, has been implemented and
the CSR Committea monfdorsthe Implameantation of
e project in compliance with cur CSR objectves.

The Company's philosophy of Corporate Governance s oriented towards achieving efficient conduct of s
business , meetng ils obligations o stakeholdars with ransparency, accountabéity and intagrity as the pillars.

2. Internal Audit and Compliance

The Company conducts ils internal audit and compliance functions within the parameters of regulalary
framework. The internal aidit function is being carred out by an external firm of Charterad Accountants and their
guarterly reporls are reviewed on quarterly basis by the Awdit commilles, which lssues appropriate

recommendations and direclions as may be necessary,

The Audit Commilles reviews the performance of the audit and compliance functions, the effectiveness of
controls and compliance with regulatory guidefines and gives such directions to the Management as

necassanyconsidered appropriats,

11
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3. Boardof Directors

(i Compositionand sizeof the Boand:
The present sirength of Boand of Directors is 12, The details of the directors as at March 31, 2016 is given
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below,
Mo, of Mestings Mo, of Presence
held durling Mestings at the
Mame of Director Ty pe of Directorship the period the | attended laat AGM

Director was

on the Board
Shri PK. Kunhalkuftty Chairman , Gok nominee 4 1 -
Shri T Balakrishnan, 185 (Retd.) Managing Chrector, 4 4 YES

Gak nomines
Shri P.H Kurian 145 Mon Execuliva Diracior, 4 4 -
Gok MNaminag

Shri C_K . Menon Mon Executive Diracior 4 2 -
Shri Varghese Kurian Mon Exaculiva Diractor 4 3] -
shr SV Rappal Mon Execulvva Diractor 4 4 -
Shrl Siddeak Ahmed Haji Panamtharayil | Mon Execulive Diracior 4 Il -
Shr Mohamed Althal Mon Execulive Diracior 4 3 -
Shri M M Abdul Bashear Mon Execuliva Direcior 4 3 YES
Smt M Beena [AS Additional Directar i) - -
Shri P Mandakumaran Indapandani Diractor 4 4 YES
smi Pamala Anna Mathew Indapendant Diracior 4 2 -

Conservation of energy

The operations of the Company involve low energy consumgtion. Adequate measures have however been taken to

CONSENVE Bnergy.

The Company is developing its Solar Energy wing 3o that it contributes to the renewable energy generation efforis of

the Govemment,

Technology absorption, adaptation and innowvation
The Company uses fhe latest iechnologies for improving the productivity of its human resources and quality of its

sarnvices
Research & Development

Specific areas inwhich R&D was carried out by the Company.

The Company i Into development and implementation of Infrastructure Projects. These projects are still to attain
commercial implementation.  Owver the years, the Company proposes to derive benefit out of this exposure and
identify potential areas where research is necessary.

Benefits Derbved
As af now, nil,
Future Plan of Action

The Company will develop collaborative solutions, including identifying areas where cost reduction and higher

productivity could be attained,
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2016

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

l. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

s AN U4S200K L2007 PLCOZ204T1
z, Hagiﬁtraﬁﬂn Cate Q9,03 2007
3 Mame of the Company INKEL Limited
4. Eamﬂfﬁuh—mlegury ofthe Company | Public Company limited by shares
5 Address of the Registerad office & INKEL Limited, Dioor Mo, T/47 .3 ZA-586, 2nd Floor,
contact details Ajival Complex, Kakkanad, Cochin- 882030
Ph; 0484 — 58491138
6. Whetherlisted company Unlisted
T Name, Address & contact defails of the BgSE Financials Limited
Registrar& Transfar Agent, if amy. Exchange Towers, Mo.51, 15t Cross, J. C. Road,
Bangalore - 560 027
FPhone: Office ; 080-4132 966, Mobike: O FTE09 68051
email :rta_admin@bfsl.coinor manager ra@bfslco.in

[l. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% ormore of the total furnover of the company shall be stated)

5. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turmover of
No. | products / services the company

1 Infrastruciural projects 45 100%

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SM| Mame & address of CIN % of shares | Holding/Subsidiary/ | Applicable

the company held Associate section
1 | INKEL-KSIDC Projecis

Limited U74800K1L 201 DPLCO25553 7 Subsidiary 287 (i)
2 | INKEL-KINFRA

Infrastruciure Projecls

Limited U74900KL 201 DPLCO25558 74 Subsidiany 2(B7 (i)
3 | MIV Logistics Private

Limited UB3012KL2011PTC0Z2BE3E 38.43 Associate 2(6)
4 | Thalikulam PURS

Private Limitad LM45100KL2012PTCO30530 58 85 Subsidiary 2087}
5 | Teurangadi PURA

Private Limitad LM5100KL2D12PTC 030588 B8 84 Subsidiary 2{B7 (i)
& | IMKES Trade Centre

Lirnited 4540020 14PLCO3TEEE 7d Subsidiany 2(B7 (5]
7. | SEGURO — INKEL

Consortium LLP AAD-10419 45 Associate 2{B]
8 | INKEL-EKK Roads

Privale Limited U503 KL20EPTCOE9048 30 Azzociale 2(6)

13
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¥l. SHARE HOLDING PATTERMN
Mame of shareholders No., of shares held Percentage
Gavt, of Kerala 40500000 24,84
Govt, Companles 12000000 T.36
Directors / Relatives of Directors GT217T000 41.23
Foreign Holdings 22000000 13,449
Banks & Corporate Holdings BTO0O0 8,34
hhers 12610000 .73
TOTAL 163027000 100.00

Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
MIL

V) INDEBTEDMESS -
Indebtedness of tha Company including interest outstanding’accrued but not due for paymeant,

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Daposits Total
exciuding deposits indebtedness
MIL
V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONMNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whale-time Directors andlor Manager:
SN.| Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD
T Balakrishnan
1 Gross salary
{a) Ealaﬁ- as per provisions contained in secton 1701 ) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 36,00,000
{+]] Ealua of parquisites ws 172} Income-lax Act, 1961
(e} Profitsin lsew of salary under saction 17{3) Incoma- tax Act, 1961
2 Slock Oplion MIL
3 Sweal Equity MIL
4 Commissicn
as % ol prafil
- glhers, specify... MIL
5 Others, please spacily WA
Total 36.00.000
Cailing as per the Act 48,004,000

14
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Amount (Rs)

SN

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

cs

CFO

Total

Gross salary

1280913

14,156,963

26,97 B76

(&) Salary as per provisions contained in
zaction 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

b) Value of ulsites u's 17
0) Inmn&-tg:r.‘ﬁq.ct. 1961 o

(e} Profits in Bew of =alary under saction
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stack Option

L]

Sweal Equity

Commission

« as Yo of profit

othars, specily..

Others, please specify

Total

12.80,913

14,16,963

26,97,876

Wil

PEMALTIES [ PUNISHMENT! COMPOUMDING OF OFFENCES:

Typa

Section of the
Companles Act

Briaf

Description | Punishment!

Imposed

Datails of Penalty /
Compounding foes

Author
[RD | NCLT! COURT]

Appeal made,
H';?l;:{glw Details)

Company

: Hil

Directors

: Wil

Othar officars in default

il
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FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" March, 2016

T,
ThaMembears,
IMKEL Limited

We have conducted the secretanal awdil of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence io
good corporate praclices by INKEL Limited {hereinafter called the company ). Secratarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/stalutary compliances and
axpressing our oplnicn theraan,

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and refurmes filed and other records maintained
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives duri gg the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
dun the audit pericd covering the financial earended on 31 March, 2016 complied the statutory provisions

that the Company has proper Board-processes and mr:tulian-ue—meﬂ'nanism In place to the extant, in the
manruer and subject to the reporting made herainafier,

The Company is not a listed entity and therefore, the Sacurities and Exchanges Board of IndiaAct, 1992 and various
regulations made there under ara nol applicable to the Company.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and refurns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2016 according to the E;mms of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) and the rulas made there under and the other laws applicable to the Company;

1.  During the perod undar review the Company has compilied with the provisions of the Acl, Rules, Regulations,
Circulars and Guidalines, ete. mentionad abave subjact to the following observations:

) The Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company for the financial was held on 267 August,
2015 st Emakudam wikich iz not within cityfown in which the reqistered office of the Company iz sifuated,
a5 requived urder Section 56(2) of the AT,

In ras r|:)EI.'.-! af other laws lika Aclts relaling to employes and abour reguiations, welare and connected activilies,
specifically applicable 1o the Company, wea have raliad on informaticn/ records producad by the Company during the
course of our - audit and the reporting is limited to that extent.

We further report that

2. Tha lllowing Bules lssued under the Companies Act, 2013 are nol applicable o the Company during Hhe
financial year 2015-16:

1. Companies (Prospecius and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 as the Company has not issued any
shares or other securities,

Z.  Companies (lssua of Global Depository Recalpts) Rules, 2014 as the Company has not issued any Global
Deposilary Raceipls.

3. Companies (Share Capital and Debenfures ) Rubkes, 2014 except the splitting and transfer of shares.,
4. Companies (Acceptance of Deposits ) Rules, 2014 as the Company has not accapled any deposits.

5.  Companies (Inspection, investigation and inquiry) Rukes, 2014 as no inspection or Investigation was
ordered on the affairs of the Company.

The Gompany has compliad with the following Rules, issued under the Companies Act, 2013

Companies (Management and Administralion) Rules, 2014 subject to observation inpara 1(1} above.
Companias (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Companies (Declaration and Paymeant of Dividend) Rules, 2014

Companias (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

Companies (Corporale Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

Companas (Appointment and Quakfication of Directors ) 2014

Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,

Companias (Appainiment and Remunaration of Managerial Parsonnel ) Rules, 2014,

e, R B
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The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions taken at the Board Meetings were properly captured and recorded in the minutes.

We further report that there are scope for improving the systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company lo monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

For Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates

Place: Ernakulam K. P. Gopimohan
Date: 12/05/2016 Partner
FCS No.: 7110
C P No.: 2912
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Members of INKEL Limited
Thrikkakara

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone
financial statements of INKEL Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheel as at
31st March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and mattars
which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2016, and its profit and its cash flows for the
yearended on that date,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.12.1 and Note 2.18.1 1o
the standalone financial statements which states
that having regard to the plan for future operations of
the subsidiary/associate companies and the
realisable uarh(]e of assets owned by these
Companies, the management is of the opinion that
the loans given to these companies will be recovered
in full and there is no permanent diminution in the
value of such investments.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 ("the Order”™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11)
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in "Annexure A", a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we
report that:

19



INKEL Limited

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

{f)

We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinian, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule T of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from
being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal
financial controls over financial rﬁpnrting of
the Company and the operating

20
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effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Reportin "Annexura B".

{g) With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditors' Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the
explanations giventous:

i, The Company has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 2.31(c) to the
standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any
long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses,

iii. There has been no delay in
transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

Place: Kochi- 19
Date:22/06/2016
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"ANNEXURE A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “"REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF
EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INKEL LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) We are informed that fixed assets have been
physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and that no material
discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{c) According to the information and explanation
given to us, the records of the Company
examined by us and the confirmation from
financial lender in respect of fitle deed
deposited with them and based on the details
of immovable property fumished to us by the
Company, the title deed of the immovable
property are held in the name of the
Company.

The inventory comprises of land and building.
We are informed that the inventory has been
physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and that no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to
three companies and one limited liability
partnership covered in the register maintained
Iundsr Section 189 of the Act. In relation to such
oans -

(@) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on
which the loans have been granted to the
companies and limited liability partnership
covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act were not prima facie
prejudicial to the inferest of the Company.

(b) As per the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the terms do not stipulate
any repayment schedule and the principal
and interest are repayable on demand. As
per the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised any demand
against the above loans during the year.

(c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of
such loans.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of
the Act in respect of the loans granted,
investments made, guarantees given and
security provided by the Company.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examinad by us, the Company has not accepted

any deposits from the public during the year and
hence, the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder are not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to
the information and explanations given tous, tha
Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cosl records under Seclion
148(1) of the Act for the Company at this stage.

{a)As per the information and explanations
given to us and according to our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company
has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees' State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues as
applicable to the Company to the appropriate
authorities during the year, except for minor
delays in depositing Income Tax and Service
Tax.

There are no arrears of undisputed statutory
dues outstanding at the last day of the
financial year for a period of more than six
months from the date on which they became
payable.

(b)According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, the Company
has no dues of Income Tax, Service Tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise or Value Added
Tax that have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings to a
financial institution, bank, Government or dues
to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, no money has been raised by
way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and the term loan
availed by the Cumﬁany have been applied for
the purpose for which the loan was obtained.

. During the course of our examination of the

books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we
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. The Company

have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have been
informed of any such case by the Management.

. According to the information and explanations

given to us and based on the examination of the
records of the Company, managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

is not a Nidhi company.
Accordingly, the reporting requirements under
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable.

. According to the information and explanations

given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details of
such transactions have been disclosed in Note
2.28 to the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting
standards.
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According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the examination of the
recards of the Company, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year,

. According to the information and explanations

given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with the directors.
Accordingly, the reporting requirement under
clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

. According to the information and explanations

given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company s not required to
be registered under Section 45-lA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
the reporting requirement under clause (xvi) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

Place: Kochi- 19
Date: 22/06/2016
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“ANNEXURE B" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(f) UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS"” OF OUR INDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INKEL LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of INKEL Limited ("the Company”
as of March 31, 20186 in conjunction with our audit
the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportin

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants o
India. These responsibiliies include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting {the “Guidance Mote") and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by the ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if
such confrols operated effectively in all matenal
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors'
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatemeant of the financial statemeants,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed lo provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance re%arding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the
essential components of intermal control stated in the
Guidance MNote on Audit of Intermal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Kochi- 19
Date: 22/06/2016
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Particulars MNote No.| Asat31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
{In Rupees) {In Rupees)
["I._EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders® Funds
(a) Share Capital 21 1,63,02,70,000 1,63.,02,70,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 22 26,56,63,151 21,80,03,462
{2) Nen - Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowings 23 3,00,00,000 -
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Met) 24 5,38,26,040 2,75,57 651
(c) Other Long -Term Liabilities 25 63,53,240 5546240
(d) Long - Term Provisions 2.6 22,54,189 10,40,450
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 2.7
i. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and
small enterprise 3,713,899 -
il. Total outstanding dues other than micro
enterprise and small enterprise 96,50 437 91,29,133
(b) Other Current Liabilities 2.8 5,92,06,945 510,64 117
(c) Short Term Provisions 249 12,36,23 473 6,05,89 529
TOTAL 2,18,11,61,474 | 2,00,32,00,582
Il. ASSETS
(1) Non - Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assels 2.10 68,32,48,990 46,59 42,649
(i} Intangible Assets 2.10 3,59, 618 93,281
(iii) Capital Work - in - Progress 2.1 67,308 8,31,01,054
(b) Mon - Current Investments 2.12 £0,91,88,935 30,65,81,528
(c) Long - Term Loans and Advances 2.13 15,69,26,769 12,71,19,394
(d) Other non-current assels 2.14 2,05,73,000 9,27.52,268
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 2.15 - -
(b) Trade Receivables 218 24,24 51,332 11,12,52,071
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 217 18,46,44 159 40,77,94 372
(d) Short - Term Loans and Advances 2.18 36,96,36,282 40,02,67,809
(e) Other Current Assels 218 1,40,65,081 82,96,156
TOTAL 2,18,11,61,474 | 2,00,32,00,582
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 182

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. Balakrishnan,
Managing Director
DIN: 00052922

Director

K. Padmadasan,
Company Secretary

Place : Kochi
Date : 22/06/2016
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DIN: 00120916

George Raphael,
Chief Financial Officer

M.M. Abdul Basheer,

As per our Report of even date attached

For Varma & Varma

Chartered Accountants

Firm No.0045328

Vijay Narayan Govind

(Partner)

Membership No. 203094
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016

Particulars Mote Mo. | Forthe year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
{In Rupees) (In Rupees)
I. REVENUE
Revenue from Operations 2.20 29,88,59,302 33,49,64,754
Other Income 2.21 998,07, 133 11,92,26,216
Il. Total Revenue 39,86,66,435 45,41,90,970
ll. Expenses:
Cost of land acquired/building/amenities
constructed and disposed (on Long Term
Finance Lease Agreements) 222 11,66,24 551 20.50,67.875
Employee Benefit Expense 2.23 2.7543,191 2,08,26,019
Finance Costs 2.24 - 461,648
Depreciation and Amortisation 2.10 1.71,55,609 1,80.06,925
Other Expenses 2.25 4.,40,93,895 514,611,748
IV. Total Expenses 20,54 17,246 29,58,24 215
V. Profit Before Tax (Il - IV) 19,32,49.189 15,83,66,755
VI. Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 4,08,34,925 3,46,38,270
(2)Deferred Tax 2,62,68,390 2,08,97,928
Vil. Profit for the year (V - VI) 12,61,45,874 10,28,30,557
VIIl. Earning per Equity Share: 2.26
(1) Basic 0.77 0.63
(2) Diluted 0.77 0.63

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1 & 2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. Balakrishnan,
Managing Director
DIN: 00052922

K. Padmadasan,
Company Secretary

Place : Kochi
Date : 22/06/2016

M.M. Abdul Basheer,
Director
DIN: 001209186

George Raphael,
Chief Financial Officer

As per our Report of even date attached

For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.0045325

Vijay Marayan Govind

(Partner)
Membership No. 203084
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2016
NOTE - 2.1 SHARE CAPITAL (In Rupees)
As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Particulars Mumber of Amount Number of Amount
Shares Shares
Authorised
Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10/-
(Rs. 10,000/-) Each 20,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000 2.00,000 2,00,00,00,000
20,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000 2.00,000 2,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribaed and Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs 10/-
(Rs. 10,000/-) Each 16,30,27,000 | 1.63,02,70,000 1,63,027 1,63,02,70,000
L 16,30,27.000 | 1,63,02,70,000 1.63,027 li 1,63,02,70,000 ]

2.1.1 Pursuant to shareholders' approval dated 26th August 2015, the equity shares of Rs.10,000/- each of the
Company were subdivided into 1,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. Accordingly, all shares and per share
information in the financial results reflect the effect of sub-division for each of the years presented,

2.1.2 Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares with a face value of Rs, 10/- (Rs.10,000/-)
each. Each holder of equity share is enlitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in
Indian Rupees, The dividend proposed/ declared by the Board of Directors is subject to approval/regularisation of
the shareholders’ in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year {In Rupees)
As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares Shares
Equity Shares
As at the beginning of the
financial year 16,30,27,000 |1,63,02,70,000 163,027 | 1,63,02,70,000

Shares issued during the
financial year

As at the end of the financial year 16,30,27,000 (1,63,0270,000 1,863,027 | 1,63,02,70,000

Particulars of Shareholders holding
more than 5% share in the Company

Govt. of Kerala - 24.84 %

(Previous year 24.84 %) 4,05,00,000 [ 40,50,00,000 40,500 40,50,00,000
Bismi Holdings Ltd - 6.75 %

(Previous year 6.75 %) 1,10,00,000 11,00,00,000 11,000 11,00,00,000
Shni. Yusuffali M A - 15.13 %

(Previous year 15.13 %) 2,46,66,000 24,66,60,000 24 666 24.,66,60.000
Shri. Varghese Kurian - 6.75 %

(Previous year 6.75 %) 1,10,00,000 11,00,00,000 11,000 11,00,00,000
Or.Mohamed All - 6.44 %

(Previous year 6.44 %) 1,05,00,000 10,50,00,000 10,500 10,50,00,000

Pursuant to shareholders® approval dated 26th August 2015, the equity shares of Rs.10,000/- each of the Company
vr-r]ere fsfubdiui::ied into 1,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. Accardingly, the current year notes have been stated to
this effect.
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NOTE - 2.2 RESERVES & SURPLUS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
Surplus
Opening Balance 21,80,03 462 17,40,37,543
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 12.61,45,874 10,28,30,557
Amount Available for Appropriation 34,41,49,336 27.68,68,100
Less: Appropriations
Proposed Dividend (See Note 2.2.1) 6,52,10,800 4.89,08,100
Tax on Proposed Dividend 1,32,75,385 99,56 538
7,84,86,185 5,88,64 638
Closing Balance 26,56,63,151 21,80,03 462
26,56,63,151 21,80,03,462

2.2.1 The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a dividend of Rs. 0.40/- per share of face value Rs.10
each (Rs. 300/- per share of face value Rs. 10,000 each) for the financial year 2015-16, which is subject to approval
by shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

NOTE - 2.3 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars

{In Rupees)
As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2016

Term Loans from Other parties

Unsecured (See Note 2.3.1) 3.00.00,000 -

3,00,00,000 .

2.3.1 The above interest free loan was sanctioned by the State Level Export Promotion Committee(SLEPC) under
the Assistance to States for developing Export Infrastructure and other Allied Activities(ASIDE) Scheme
implemented by Kerala Industrial Infrastructure Development Corporation(KINFRA) acting as the Government of
Kerala appointed Nodal agency. The loan is repayable in three annual instalments of Rs. 1 crore each starting from
the fourth year of disbursment, to be paid before 31st March 2019, 31stMarch 2020 & 31stMarch 2021 respectively.

NOTE - 2.4 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET])

(In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

A. Deferred Tax Liability
On excess of net book value over Income tax written down

value of fixed assels 5,61,64,244 280,14 787
B. Deferred Tax Assets
On disallowances 23,338,204 4.57.136
5,38,26,040 2,75,57,651
NOTE - 2.5 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES {In Rupees)

Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
Security Deposils 63,53,240 55,46,240
63,53,240 55,46,240

NOTE - 2.6 LONG TERM PROVISIONS {In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for Leave Encashment (See Note-2.27)

2254189

10,40.450

22,54,189

10,40,450

27



INKEL Limited

NOTE - 2.7 TRADE PAYABLES

Annual Report

2019E116

(In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Trade Payables (See Note 2.7.1)
i. Total outstanding dues of micro enlerprise and small enterprise

ii. Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprise and small
enterprise

3,113,999 -
96,50,437 91,209,133
99,64,436 91,29,133

2.7.1 The company has taken steps to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro enterprises and
small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20086, Intimations
have been received from one suEpIiar regarding their status under the said Act as at the year end, based on which,

principal amount unpaid to suc

supplier as at the year end aggregating to Rs.3,13,999/- (Rs. Nil) has been

included under Trade Payables. In the opinion of the management, the impact of interest, if any, which may be
payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act, is not expected to be material,

NOTE - 2.8 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Accounts payable - Capital 3,60,29.491 44 82170
Lease hold Premium received in Advance 46,13,336 3.54,55.170
Advance From Customers/Clients - 23,91,550
Retention Money payable 1.21,66,764 48,32,824
Statutory Dues 57.03,888 31,70,494
Security Deposit / Earnest Money Deposit 3.68 4860 5,01,403
Uriclaimed Dividend 3.25,006 2,30,5086
5,92,06,945 5,10,64,117

NOTE - 2.9 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS (In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Provision for employee benefits

-Provision for Leave Encashment (See Note 2.27) 20,38,319 14,11,845
-Provision for Gratuity (See Note 2.27) - 3.13,046
Proposed Dividend 6,52,10,800 4,89,08,100
Tax on Proposed Dividend 1,32,75,385 899,56,538
Provision for Income tax 4,08.34 925 -
Provision for Capital Expenditure for Long Term Finance Lease
(See Note 2.9.1) 22,64,044
12,36,23 473 6,05,89,529
2.9.1 Details of Provisions
MNature of Provision Balance as at Additional Amounts Unused Balance
01.04.2015 Provision used/changed | amounts as at
during the year| during the year | reversed | 31.03.16
Provision for Capital Expenditure
for Long Term Finance Lease 22 64,044 . - | 22,864,044
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(In Rupees)

Particulars As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Projects under implementation 67,308 8.31,01.054
67,308 8,31,01,054

NOTE - 2.12 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (In Rupees

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(Un-guoted, Trade, at cost)

i) In Subsidiary Companies
- INKEL- KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd
74,000 (74,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid ug
- INKEL- KSIDC Projects Ltd
1,83,23 412 (1,83,23,412) Equity Sharas of Rs.10/- each,
fully paid up
- INKES Trade Centre Ltd
37,00,000 (37000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each,
fully paid up

ii) In Associate companies
- MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd

1,18,29,714 (1,18,29,714} Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each,
fully paid up

iii} In Joint Ventures
- INKEL-EKK Roads Pvt Ltd
3, 000(Nil) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up
iv) In Others
- KV Apartments Pvt Ltd (Associate till 31.12.2014)
50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/~ each, fully paid up

b) Investments in Preference Instruments
(Un-quoted, Trade, at cost)

i) In Associate companies
- MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd

1,680,00,000 (Nil) Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up

c) Investment in Limited Liability Partnership({LLP)
(Un-quoted, Trade, at cost)

i) In Jointly Controlled Entity

-SEGURO - INKEL Consortium LLP
Investment towards 45% of the capital

Add: Share of Profit from LLP

7,40,000

18,32,34,120

3,70,00,000

11,82,97,140

30,000

5,00,000

16,00,00,000

4,50,000
88,37.675

7.40,000

18,32,34 120

3,70,000

11,82,97,140

5,00,000

450,000
29,980,268

Total capital of the LLP- R=.10,00,000

93,87.675

34,40,268

Total investments (a) + (b} + [ c)

50,91,88,935

30,65,81,528

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

50,91,88,935

30,65,81,528

2.12.1 Having regard to the plans for future operations of the subsidiary/associate companies and the realizable
value of assets owned by these Companies, the management is of the opinion that the loans given to these
companies will be recovered in full together with interest thereon and there is no permanent diminution in the value

of such investments,
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NOTE - 2.13 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
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(In Rupees)

Particulars As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Advance for Capital Assets 59 27,500 17,10,000
Security Deposits 15,82,490 21,286,740
Advance to Kerala State Industrial Enterprises Ltd towards
proposed Joint Venture Infrastructure Project 1,21,00,000
Income Tax (Net) 4 60,88,185 1,11,82, 654
Advance to Related Parties
- SEGURO - INKEL Consortium LLP 10,33,28,584 10,00,00,000
15,69,26,769 12,71,19,394
NOTE - 2.14 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS {In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Trade Receivables
{Unsecured Considered good)

-Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they were due for payment

-Others (See Note 2.14.1)

2,05,73,000

8,2v7,52,268

2,05,73,000

9,27,52,268

2.14.1 Trade Receivables include Rs.Nil (Rs.9,27 52, 268/-) due from Kerala Academy for Skills Excellence (KASE),
a Government of Kerala owned private limited company; in which a director of INKEL Limited is a director.

NOTE - 2.15 INVENTORIES

(In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Land and Building held on long term finance lease
Opening Balance

Add: Additions during the year 11,66,24 551 20,5067 875

Less: Disposed during the year 11,66,24 551 20,50,67 875

Closing Balance - -
NOTE - 2.16 TRADE RECEIVABLES {In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Trade Receivables
(Unsecured Considered good)

-Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they were due for payment

-Others (See Note 2.16.1)

69,87 885 3,73,036
235463447 11.08.,79,035
24,24 51,332 11,12,52,071

2.16.1

Trade Receivables include Rs.58,35,872/- (Rs.53,82,737/-) due from MIV Logistics Private Limited,

Rs.10,15,37,226 (Rs.Nil) due from Kerala State Industrial Development Corporation (KSIDC),a Government of
Kerala owned private limited company in which a director of INKEL Limited is a director and Rs.9,30,82 680/-
(Rs.Nil) due from Kerala Academy for Skills Excellence (KASE), a Government of Kerala owned private limited
company; in which a director of INKEL Limited is a director.
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NOTE - 2.17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
Cash on Hand 12,028 7,603
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts 6,32.671 20,336,769
In Fixed Deposit Accounts 18,39,99,460 40,57,50,000
18,46,44,159 40,77,94,372

2.17.1 Earmarked Balances:

a. Balance with banks in Current Accounts include earmarked balances for unpaid dividend Rs.18,500/-
{Rs.18,500/-) for the Financial Year 2009-10, Rs.1,79,606/- {Rs.2,30,948/-) for the Financial Year 2013-14 and

Rs.1 ,EE,QBD)— (Mil} for the Financial Year 2014-15.

2.17.2 Balance with banks in Deposit Accounts include Rs. 50,000/- (Rs. 2,50,000/-) held with a maturity period of

more than 12 manths.

2.17.3 Balance with banks in DepositAccountincludes Rs. 5,34.61,396/- (Rs. 2,50,000/-) held under lien.

NOTE - 2,18 SHORT TEREM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars

Loans/Advances to related parties
INKEL- KSIDC Projects Ltd- Subsidiary Company
(See Note 2.18.1)

INKEL - KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Lid-
Subsidiary Company({See Note 2.18.1)

INKES Trade Centre Ltd- Subsidiary Company

SEGURO - INKEL Consortium LLP- Jeintly Controlled Entity
INKEL - EKK Roads (P) Ltd- Jointly Controlled Entity
Others:

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Earnest Money Deposils

Balances with Government Authorities
Advance to Suppliers/Contractors
Advance lo employees

(In Rupees)
As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015

28,79,01,618 25,75,79,025
1,98 48,286 1,86,49,996
- 36,72,797
3,76,73,521 9,70,06,567
1,683,497 -
2,00,65,850 2,22,18,898
10,50,000 -
213,180 90,207
24 27 820 853,377
292,500 06,942
36,96,36,282 40,02,67,809

2.18.1 Having regard to the plans for future operations of the subsidiary companies and the realizable value of
assets owned by these Companies, the management is of the opinion that the loans given to these companies will

be recovered in full together with interest thereon,

NOTE - 2.19 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
Interest Receivable 1,37.03,296 79 55 983
Prepaid expenses 3,61,785 340,173
1,40,65,081 82,96,156

32



/

Annual Re ort

INKEL Limited
‘[[E

INKEL Limited

NOTES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016

NOTE - 2,20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Income from disposal of land and building

(On long term finance lease) 24,94 .98 745 30,53,38,110

Income from Operating Lease 92.00,513 81,63,368

Common Amenity Charges 46,82, 328 18,78,396

Income from Project Management Services (See Note 2.20.1) 24177415 1,43 .50,155

Share of Course Fee Received 1,13,00,301 52,334,725
29,88,59,302 33,49,64,754

2.20.1 Government of Kerala, Department of Treasury, Trivandrum has entrusted the work of modernising and
renovating existing treasuries and construction of new treasury buildings under agreements to the company, at
various locations in the State of Kerala. As per the said agreements, read with Government of Kerala on guidelines
on this matter (for executing civil works), the company is entitled to the total sum of Rs.4,50,921/- (Rs.11,59,373/-)
as Centage Charges for the year, at agreed rates, which is recognised as income, and included in income from
project management services in the statement of profit and loss for the year. Expenses incurred during the year by
BSNL, who was engaged as construction agency for the works by the Company for such contracts and by other
contractors engaged by the Company aggregated to Rs.74,07 478/- (Rs.1,96,90,348/-) has been reimbursed to
them out of the deposits received/receivable from Government of Kerala for the works. Consultancy charges

payable to BSNL at agreed rates has been recognized as expenditure.

NOTE - 2.21 OTHER INCOME (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Interest Income a11.35,767 11,41,89,459
Share of Profit from LLP 59.47 407 29.90,268
Profit on Sale of Asset 65,861 1,771,114
Guarantee Fee Received 13,73,031 -
Liquidity Damages 40,000 3,56,605
Agricultural Income 278,697 5
Miscellaneous Income 963,370 15,18,770
9,98,07,133 11,92,26,216
NOTE - 2.22 COST OF LAND ACQUIRED/BUILDING/AMENITIES
CONSTRUCTED AND DISPOSED
(On long term finance lease agreements) (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Cost of Land 2,96,07 864 3,19,79,883
Cost of Building/Plant and Equipment 8,47 52,643 17,30,87 992
Cost of Amenities 22,64.044 —
11,66,24,551 20,50,67 875
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NOTE - 2.23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Salaries & Allowances 24815944 1.81.53.310
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 12,34, 789 14 ,68.861
Staff Welfare Expense 13,92.458 12,03,848
27543191 2,08,26,019
NOTE - 2.24 FINANCE COSTS (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Interest expense - 4. 61,648
- 4,61,648
NOTE - 2.25 OTHER EXPENSES (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activity
(See Note 2.25.1) 2.11,825 -
Agricultural expenses 17.49.046 -
Project Management Services Expenses 41,11,185 59.68,078
Power & Fuel 36,95,561 17,554,398
Rent 34,63,360 27. 78,424
Repairs & Maintenance 48,89,275 12.26,604
Insurance 1,15,388 1,22,934
Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audit 1,85,000 1.25,000
Taxation Matters 60,000 20,000
Other Services 1,19,000 85,000
Reimbursement of expenses 11,258 15,210
Bank Charges 66,364 42 290
Meeting expenses 9.75,454 18,46, 023
Sitting fee to Direclors 5,45,905 3.22,500
Consideration for Manpower services 40,37 664 46,55, 961
Hostel Running and Course expenses 12,411,234 115811
Advertisement & Publicity 79,15,096 12,33,858
Loss on Sale of assets 1,79,867 3,168
Membership/ Subscription to Professional bodies 1,68,494 44 776
Postages, Telephone and internet charges 9,765,638 8.74 057
Printing and Stationery 262,619 243,299
Professional Charges & Legal Fee 13,44,6894 7.45,381
Rates & Taxes 18,90,188 27.58.451
Staff Recruitment Expense 6,594,772 7.76,540
Travelling & Conveyance 41,01,961 4224 854
Trade Investments written off - 1,68.81,891
Expenditure on projects written off 4,11,669 33.36,351
Miscellaneous Expenses 6.70177 2.61,689
4.40,93,6895 | 5,14,61,748
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i) Gross amount required to be spent during the
year Rs.17,63,000 (Rs.9,57.400)

In cash Yet to be paid
i} Amount spent during the year in cash
- Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
- on purposes other than above 2,11,825 -
211,825 -
NOTE - 2.26 EARNINGS PER SHARE {In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Profit after tax for the year as per Statement of
Profit and Loss (In Rs.) 12.61,45,874 10,28.30,557
Weighted average number of Equity shares of
Rs.10/- (Rs.10,000/-) each (fully paid up) - (See Note 2.1.1) 16,30,27.,000 16,30,27,000
Basic and Diluted Eamings Per E Lr'rlg Share- In Rs.
(Face VWalue of Share- Rs.10 eachﬂ - See Note 2.26.1 0.77 0.63

2.26.1 Previous yaarﬁ%uras have been recast pursuant to sub-division of the face value of equity shares of the

Company from
Note No. 2.27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

5.10,000/- each to Rs. 10/- each during the year.

{Disclosure under Accounting Standard 15 —'Employee Benefits’, Revised 2005)

2.27.1 Defined Contribution Plans

During the year the company has recognized Rs.8,21,033/~(Previous Year Rs.7,93,229/-) in the Statement of

Profit and Loss on account of defined contribution plans.

2.27.2 Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity (Funded)

(i} Actuarial Assumptions

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Discount Rate

Rate of return on plan assets
Compensation escalation rate *
Mortality rate

8.00% p.a.
Mot Applicable
5.00% p.a.

Indian Lives
Mortality[1994-1996]
Ultimate Table

8.00% p.a,
Mot Applicable
5.00% p.a.

Indian Lives
Mortality[1994-1996]
Ultimate Table

*The assumption of future salary incre ases takes into account the inflationseniority, promotions and other relevant

factors such as supply and demand in the employment market,

{In Rupees)
(i) | Reconciliation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 23 57,549 18,16,413
Current Service Coslt 386,837 5,25145
Interest Cost 204,077 1.16,318
Actuarial (gain)/loss (78.620) 1,11,182
Benefits Paid {1,87,699) {2,11,510)
Curtailments - -
Settlements - -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 26,82,144 23.57,549
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(In Rupees)
(iii)] Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets : 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 20,44,503 11,06,768
Expected return on plan assets 1,63,560 1,562,640
Actuarial gain/(loss) 1,23,033 (1,09,357)
Contributions 8,19,064 8,94 ,452
Benefits paid (1,59,891) -
Assets distributed on settlement = =
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 29,90,269 20,44,503

(In Rupees)

(iv)

Net (Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet
as at year end:

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Present value of obligation 26,82,144 23,567,549
Fair value of plan assets 29,90,269 20,44,503
Net present value of unfunded obligation recognised as

(asset)/liability in the Balance Sheet (3,08,125) 3,13,046

(In Rupees)
(v) | Expenses recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss: 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Current Service Cost 3,86,837 5,25,145
Interest Cost 2,04,077 1,16,319
Expected return on plan assets (1,63,560) (1,52,640)
Actuarial (gain) /loss recognised in the period (2,01,653) 2,20,539
Past Service Cost - -
Curtailment cost - -
Settlement cost - -
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss 2,25,701 7,09,363

Leave Plan (Unfunded)

(i)

Actuarial Assumptions

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Discount Rate

Rate of return on plan assets
Compensation escalation rate *
Mortality rate

8.00% p.a.
Not Applicable
5.00% p.a.
Indian Lives

Mortality[1994-1996]

Ultimate Table

8.00% p.a.
Not Applicable
5.00% p.a.

Indian Lives
Mortality[1994-1996]
Ultimate Table

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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(In Rupees)
(ii)| Reconciliation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 24 52 295 19,92,020
Current Service Cost 13,16,083 7.49,057
Interest Cost 248,827 1,689,324
Actuarial (gain)/loss 6,88,205 33,235
Benefits Paid (4,112,902} (5,11,341)
Curtailments - -
Settlements - -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 42,92 508 24.52,295

(In Rupees)

(iii})

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets :

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain/{loss)

Contributions

Benefits paid

Assets distnbuted on settlement

Fair value of plan assels at the end of the year

{In Rupees)

(iv)

Met (Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet
as at year end:

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Present value of obligation 4292 508 24,52,295

Fair value of plan assets - -

Net present value of unfunded obligation recognised as

(asset)/liability in the Balance Sheet 42 92 508 24 .52 285
(In Rupees)

(v)

Expenses recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss:

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial (gain) /loss recognised in the period
Past Service Cost

Curtailment cost

Settlement cost

Total expenses recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

13,16,083
2,448,827

5,88,205

2283.115

7.49.057
1.88,324

33,235

971,616

The above disclosures are based on information certified by the independent actuary and relied upon by the
auditors.
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s INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd.

Subsidiary Company

ii. INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd.

Subsidiary Company

iii INKES Trade Centre Lid

Subsidiary Company

iv Thalikulam PURA Pvt Ltd

Subsidiary Company

v Tirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd Subsidiary Company

vi MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd Associate Company

vii KV Apartments Pvt Ltd Associate Company (till 31.12.2014)
viii INKEL- EKK Roads Pvt Ltd Jointly Controlled Entity

ix SEGURO - INKEL Consortium LLP Jointly Controlled Entity

X Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. T Balakrishnan

Managing Director

B. Description of Transactions (In Rupees)
Nature of Transaction Subsidiary/ Key Managerial
Associate Personnel Total
Income
1 Project Management Services
MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd 7,49,012 - 7,49,012
(52,58,634) - (52,58,634)
INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd. 25,69,423 - 25,69,423
(21,57,115) - (21,57,115)
SEGURO- INKEL Consortium LLP 1,07,05,014 - 1,07,05,014
INKES Trade Centre Ltd 80,95,500 - 80,95,500
2 Guarantee Commission Received
SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 13,73,031 - 13,73,031
3 Scrap Sales
MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd 97,707 - 97,707
4 Interest income from Loans/Debentures
KV Apartments - - -
(2,66,56,479) - | (2,66,56,479)
INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd. 3,11,67,943 - 3,11,67,943
(2,75,29,314) - | (2,75,29,314)
INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd. 10,87,747 - 10,87,747
(48,17,543) - (48,17,543)
SEGURO - INKEL Consortium LLP 1,65,92,296 - 1,65,92,296
(49,21,085) - (49,21,085)
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Nature of Transaction Subsidiary/ Kag Managerial
Associate ersonnel Total
Expenses
1 Remuneration to Managing Director - 36,19,781 36,19,781
- (36,34,580) (36,34,580)
Loans and Advances
1 INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd.
- Loan/Advances given 4 =
(1,00,000) (1,00,000)
- Loan/Advances recovered 1,522,282 1.52,292
(2,64,00,000) (2,64,00,000)
2 Thalikulam PURA Pwt Ltd
- Loan/Advances given - -
(2,900) {2.900)
- LoanfAdvances recovered - -
(5,197) (5,197)
3 Tirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd,
- Loan/Advances given - -
(2,100) (2,100)
- Loan/Advances recovered - -
(4,694) {4.,694)
4 |INKES Trade Centre Ltd
Loan/Advances given 1.21,12,000 1,21,12,000
(38.64,231) (38,64,231)
5 SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP
- Loan/Advances given 6,64 ,25,790 B,64,25 790
(19,25,77,591) (19.25,77.591)
- Loan/Advances recovered 13,93 45137 13,8345 137
6 KV Apartments Private Limited
(Sale of shares in the Company) - -
(40,00,000} (40,00,000)
Investments
1 INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd. 7.40,000 7.40,000
(7.40,000) (7.40,000)
2 |INKEL-KSIDC Projects Ltd 18,32,34,120 18,3234, 120
(18,32,34,120) (18,32,34,120)
3 MIV Logistics Pvt Lid
{Including Preference Shares) 27.82.897.140 27,8297 140
(11,82.97,140) (11,82,97,140)
4 Thalikulam PURA Pt Ltd 85,15,000 85,15,000
{Fully written off in the books of accounts) (85,15,000) (B5,15,000)
5 Tirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd, 83,57.000 83,57,000
(Fully written off in the books of accounts) (83,57.,000) (83,57,000)
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Nature of Transaction Subsidiary/ Key Managerial
Associate Personnel Total

6 INKES Trade Centre Ltd 3,70,00,000 - 3,70,00,000
(3,70,000) - (3,70,000)

7 SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 93,87,675 . 93,87,675
(Including share of profit) (34,40,268) - (34,40,268)

8 INKEL-EKK Roads Private Limited 30,000 - 30,000
9 KV Apartments Private Limited 5,00,000 - 5,00,000
(5,00,000) - (5,00,000)

Guarantee given

1 MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd 23,19,74,071 - | 23,19,74,071
(45,50,00,000) - |(45,50,00,000)

2 SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 24,00,00,000 - | 24,00,00,000
3 INKEL-EKK Roads Private Limited 64,00,000 - 64,00,000

Receivables

1 MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd 58,35,872 - 58,35,872
(53,82,737) - (63,82,737)

2 INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd. 29,05,81,557 - | 29,05,81,557
(26,09,17,296) - 1(26,09,17,296)

3 INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd. 2,08,27,258 - 2,08,27,258
(1,93,62,701) - | (1,98,62,701)

4 SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 14,27,22,458 - | 14,27,22,458
(19,70,06,567) - 1(19,70,06,567)

5 INKES Trade Centre Ltd 84,59,798 - 84,59,798
(36,72,797) - (36,72,797)

6 INKEL-EKK Roads Private Limited 1,63,497 - 1,63,497

Note: Transactions in the nature of current account transactions have not been included

Note -2.29

The company is engaged in providing infrastructure facilities and other services in connection with infrastructure
projects. In the opinion of the management, this is the only primary reportable segment within the meaning of
Accounting Standard-17 notified by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006.

Note 2.30 Interestin joint ventures

1. SEGURO-INKEL ConsortiumLLP

The Company has a 45% (45%) ownership interest in the Jointly controlled entity (JCE) -SEGURO-INKEL

Consortium LLP, incorporated in India.

Details of Revenue Transactions in the above said joint venture are as under : (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
A. Total Revenue 46,06,81,479 22,49,00,000
B. Total Expenses(including tax expense) 44,74,65,018 21,82,54,961
C. Net Profit/(Loss) from the Joint Venture 1,32,16,461 66,45,039
D. Share of Income/(Loss) of the Company in the above 59,47,407 29,90,268
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{In Rupees}

As at 31.03.2015

INKEL Limited

Details of other items related to the interest in the JCE are as under:
As at 31.03.2016

Particulars

Assets of the Company related fo interest in the JCE
-Loans and advances granted to the JCE

14,27,22,458 19,70,08,567

The other venturer in the JCE is Seguro Foundations and Structures Private Limited , which has the remaining 55%
(55% ) ownershipinterestin the JCE.

2. INKEL-EKK Roads Private Limited

The Company has a 30% (Nil) ownership interest in the Jointly controlled entity (JCE) - INKEL-EKK Roads Private
Limited, incorporated in India.

Details of Revenue Transactions in the above said joint venture are as under ;
(Based on the Unaudited financial statements certified by the management of the Company)

{In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
A Total Revenue -
B.Total Expenses(including tax expense) 6,67,530 -
C. Net Profit/{Loss) from the Joint Venture (6,67.530) -
D. Share of Income/(Loss) of the Company in the above {2,00,259)
Details of other items related to the interest in the JCE are as under: (In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.20186

As at 31.03.2015

Assets of the Company related to interest in the JCE
-Advances granted to the JCE

1,683,497

The other venturer in the JCE is EKK Infrastructural Private Limited which has the remaining 70% (Nil) ownership

interastin the JCE.

Note - 2.31 Contingent Liabilities not provided for :

{In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.20186

As at 31.03.2015

a) Corporate guarantee issued in favour of -

- MIV Logistics Private Limited 23,19,74,071 35,37,30,812
- SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 24,00,00,000 -
b) Bank guarantee issued in favour of -
- INKEL-EKK Roads Private Limited 64,00.000 -
¢) Claims towards Building Tax 30,116,979 28,55,835
Note - 2.32 Capital Commitments {in Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for

3.27,92,689

9,96,85.212

Note -2.33

Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006

Company had sought confirmation from the vendors whether they fall in the category of Micro or Small Enterprises.
Based on the information available, the required disclosure for Micro and small enterprises under the above Act is

given below:

41



INKEL Limited

Annual Report

20198316

{In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

a. Princlpal Amount remaining unpald But not due as at
the year end

3,13,999

b. Interest due thereon as at the year end

c. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 along
with the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year.

d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008,

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) But without adding the interest specified under

. Interest accrured and remaining unpaid as at the year end

f. Further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprises.

Note - 2.34 Dividend Remittances in foreign currency

{In Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Year to which dividend relates Financial Year Financial Year
2014-2015 2013-2014
Amount remitted during the year 66,000,000 44 00,000
Number of non resident shareholders 4 4
Number of shares on which dividend was due 22,000 22,000

Note -2.35

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figures unless otherwise stated are given within

brackets and have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. Balakrishnan, M.M. Abdul Basheer,
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00052922 OIN: 00120916

K. Padmadasan, George Raphael,
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kochi

Date : 22/06/2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016
{In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Taxation and exceptional items 19,32,49,189 15,83,66,755
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation 1,71,55,609 1,80,06,925
Loss/{Profit) on sale of Assets(Net) 1,11,006 (1,67,846)
Interest Income (9,11,35,767) (11,41,85,459)
Interast paid - 4,61,648
Share of Profit from SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP (59,47 .407) (29,90, 268)
Liabilities/Assets no Longer required written off - 1,97.,29,938
Conversion of fixed assets to current assets 11,43,60,507 20,09, 42,226
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 22.77.93,137 28,01,59,819

Changes in Working Capital

Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade Receivables

Short term loans and advances

Other Current Assets

Other Non-Current Assets

Long term Loans and Advances

Adjustments for Increase/{Decrease) in Operating
Liabilities

Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilities

Short term Provisions

Long term Provisions

Long Term Liabilities

Cash generated from Operations
Taxes Paid

Net Cash Used in Operating activities -(A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assels including Capital WIP
Loans and Advances made

Interest received on loans/deposits

Proceeds from sale of Fixed assets
{Investments)/Sale of equity shares/preference shares
(Investments)/Redemption of debentures

Investments in Others

Net Cash Used in Investing activities -(B)

(13,11,89,261)

(9,87,55,207)

(6,89,936) (1,83,12,882)
(21,612) (2,55,138)
7,21,79,268 (9,27.52,268)
5,44,250 (6,65,630)
(5,91,87,291) (20,87,41,125)
8,35,303 (79,30,586)
(2,34,98,993) (1,31,83,373)
2577472 17,24,891
12,13,739 (16,61,215)
8,07,000 4,73,240
(1.80,65,479) (2,05,77,043)
15,05,40,367 5,08,41,651
(3,49,05,531) (3,83.25,066)
11,56,34,836 1,25,16,585

(33,03,77,613)

(25,35,70,682)

4,00,92,869 (20,55,98,859)
8,53,88 453 12,67,98,995
1,00,000 2,70,166
(19,66,60,000) 27,30,000
: 19,57,00,000

. 4,50,000
(40,14,56,293) (13,32,20,380)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315ST MARCH 2016

(In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
C | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of Share Capital - -
Proceeds from Long term borrowings 3,00.00,000 -
Grant and Subsidy received from Government 8,14.41 382
Interest paid - {4,61,648)
Dividend paid (4,88,13,600) (2,99,05526)
Dividend Distribution tax paid {99,56,538) (51,21,619)
Net Cash Generated By Financing Activities - (C ) 6,26,71,244 (3,54,88,793)
Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) (22,31,50,213) (15,61,92,588)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 40,77,94,372 56,39,86,960
Closing Cash And Cash Equivalents 18,46.44 159 40,77,94,372

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year includes Rs.5,34 61,396/- (Rs.2,50,000/-) held under lien and
Rs.3,25,006/- (Rs 249 448/-) deposited in unclaimed dividend account which is earmarked for payment of

dividend.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M.M. Abdul Basheer,
Director
DIN: 00120916

T. Balakrishnan,
Managing Director
DIN; 00052922

K. Padmadasan,
Company Secretary

George Raphael,
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Kochi
Date : 22/06/2016
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1. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian
GAAP). The Company has prepared these
financial statements to comply in all material
respects with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The
financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention. The accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of financial statements are
consistent with those of previous year.

b. Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in
conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles require estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Difference between the actual result and
estimates are recognized in the period in which
the results are known /materialized.

c. Fixed Assets

Land acquired on long term lease arrangements
that are in the nature of financial leases are
classified under Fixed Assets and amortised over
the lease period. Buildings constructed on such
land are capitalised and depreciated as per
company's accounting policy. Such land and
building are reclassified and treated as Current
Assets (at Net Book Value) when the decision to
dispose under long-term finance leases is
conclusively taken by the management.

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition,
which includes taxes, duties, freight and other
incidental expenses incurred for bringing the
assets to the working condition required for their
intended use, less depreciation and impairment
in value if any, is adjusted.

d. Depreciation/ Amortisation

Depreciation on fixed asset is provided on Written
Down Value Method on the basis of the useful life
in the manner prescribed as per Schedule Il of
The CompaniesAct, 2013.

Leasehold land is amortised over the duration of
the lease. Cost of software treated as Intangible
Assets is amortised over a period of six years.

e. Government Grant/Subsidies

Government Grants and Subsidies are
recognized when there is reasonable assurance
that the Company will comply with the conditions
attached to them and the Grants/Subsidies will
be received. Government Grants whose primary
condition is that the Company should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire capital assets are
presented by deducting them from the carrying
value of the assets.
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Government Grants in the nature of Promoter's
Contribution like Investment Subsidy, where no
repayment is ordinarily expected in respect
thereof, are treated as Capital Reserve.

Other Government grants and subsidies are
recognized as Income over the periods nec
essary to match them with the costs for which
they are intended to compensate on a
systematic basis.

f. Investments

Non-Current Investments are stated at cost.
Decline in value, if any, which is not considered
temporary in nature, is provided for.

g. Revenue Recognition

Revenue arising on disposal of current assets
under long-term lease arrangements that are in
nature of financial leases is recognised in the
year in which the lease agreements are entered
into.

Proportionate income during the period of license
agreement and income from other arrangements
which are in the nature of operating leases, are
recognized as income in the respective years.

Other incomes are recognized on accrual basis
except when there are significant uncertainties.

h. Employee Benefits
i. Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly
within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short-term
employee benefits and recognized in the
period in which the employee renders the
related service.

ii. Defined Contribution Plans

The company has defined contribution
plans for employees comprising of
Provident Fund. The contributions
paid/payable to these plans during the
year are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year.

iii. Defined Benefit Plans: Gratuity (Funded)

The company makes contributions to the
Employee's Group Gratuity-cum-Life
Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance
Corporation of India. The net present value
of the obligation for gratuity benefits as
determined on actuarial valuation
conducted annually using the projected
unit credit method, as adjusted for
unrecognised past services cost, if any,
and as reduced by the fair value of plan
assets, is recognised in the accounts.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period in which they occur.

The company makes contributions to the
Employee's Group Gratuity-cum-Life
Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance
Corporation of India. The net present value
of the obligation for gratuity benefits as
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determined on actuarial valuation
conducted annually using the projected
unit credit method, as adjusted for
unrecognised past services cost, if any,
and as reduced by the fair value of plan
assefs, is recognised in the accounts.
Acluarial gains and losses are recognised
in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period in which they occur.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits:
Compensated absences (Unfunded)

The company has a scheme for
compensated absences for employees,
the liability of which is determined on the
basis of an actuarial valuation carried
out at the end of the year. Actuarial gains
and losses are recognised in full in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period
in which they occur.

i. Income Tax

Income tax is accounted in accordance with
Accounting Standard on Accounting for Taxes on
Income (AS-22), which includes current taxes
and deferred taxes. Deferred Tax assets/
liabilities representing timing differences
between accounting income and taxable income
are recognised to the extent considered capable
of being reversed in subsequent years. Deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent there
Is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available, except
that deferred tax assets arising due fto
unabsorbed depreciation and losses are
recognised if there is a virlual certainty thal
sufficient future taxableincome will be available to
realise the same,

j. Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded

at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at the applicable exchange rates
prevailing at the year-end. The exchange
ain/loss arising during the year is adjusted to the
tatement of Profitand Loss.
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k. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
assel that takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use are capitalised. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as expenditure
for the period in which they areincurred.

|. Earnings pershare

Basic/ diluted earnings per share is calculatad by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares/dilutive
potential equity shares outstanding as at the end
af the year as the case may be.

m. Impairment of Assets

The company assesses at each Balance Sheet
date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. An asset is identified as
impaired, when the carrying value of the asset
exceeds its recoverable value. Based on such
assessment, impairment loss if any is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in
which the asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognised in the prior
accounting periods is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

n. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the company
has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, for which it is probable that a cash outflow
will be required and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are nol discounted to its present value and are
determined based on management estimate
required to seftle the obligation at the Balance
Sheel date. These are reviewed al each Balance
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the comrect
management estimates.

Conlingent Liabilities are disclosed when the
company has a possible obligation or a present
obligation and it is probable that a cash flow will
not be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the accounts.



INKEL Limited

Annual Report

20155416

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of INKEL Limited
Thrikkakara

Report on the Consclidated Financial
Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of INKEL Limited ("hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) and it's
subsidiary Companies — INKEL-KSIDC Projects
Limited, INKEL-KINFRA Infrastructure Projects
Limited and INKES Trade Centre Limited (the
Holding company and its subsidiary Companies
together referred to as “the Group”), it's associate
Company (MIV Logistics Private Limited) and its
jointly controlled entities (SEGURO-INKEL
Consortium LLP and INKEL-EKK Roads Private
Limited), comprising of the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as atl 31st March, 2016, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Conselidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information [hereinager referred
to as "the consaolidated financial statements”).

Management's Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as
“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows
of the Group including its associate Company and
jointly controlied entities in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group including its associate Company and jointly
controlled entities are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Group, its associate Company and its
jointly controfled entities and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements,
The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order fo
design audil procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Holding Company's Board of Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
and the audit evidence oblained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-
paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial staterments give the
information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in canformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group, its associate Company and jointly controlled
entities as at 31st March, 2016, and their
consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No 2.13.1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements which states that
having regard to the plan for future operations of the

associate company and the realizable value of
asseis owned by the said Company, the
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management is of the opinion that there is no
permanant diminution in the value of investment in
preference shares.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these
matters,

Other Matters
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c) As stated in Note No 1.b(iv) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the
associate company —M/s. MIV Logistics Private
Limited has been prepared using the unaudited
financial statements of its associate Company -

a8) We did not audit the financial statements/
financial Information of the three subsidiary
Companies and one jointly controlled entity
whose financial statements /financial
information reflect total assets of
Rs.1,01,90,62,293/- as at March 31,2018, total
revenues of Rs.50,09.33,013/- and net cash
inflow amounting to Rs1,88,28,946 /- for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements.The
consolidated financial statements also include
the Groups share of net loss of Rs 5,38 .48 322/-
for the year ended 31° March, 2016 as
considered in the consclidated financial
statements, in respect of one associale
Company whose financial statements/
financial information have not been audited by
us.These financial statements/financial
information have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements,  insofaras
it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiary
Companies, associate Company and jointly
controlled entity, and our reportin terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary
Companies, jointly controlled entity and
associate Company, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

b) We did not audit the financial statements /
financial information of one jointly controlled
entity, whose financial statements [ financial
information reflect total assets of Rs.Nil as at
31st March, 2016, total revenues of Rs. Nil and
net cash flows amounting to Rs. Nil for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. As stated in
Note Mo 1.b.(iil) to the Consoclidated Financial
Statements, these financial statements /
financial information are unaudited and have
been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of this jointly
controlled entity and our report in ferms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Actinsofarasit
relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled entity is
based suialg on such unaudited financial
statements / financial information. In our opinion
and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management,
these financial statements / financial information
are not material to the Group.
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M/s. Seabird Seaplane Private Limited, as stated
in the Independent Auditors' Repnrt on the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the said
company.ln our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the
Management, the impact of the financial
statements / financial information of M/s Seabird
Seaplane Private Limited are not material to the
Group,

d) As stated in MNote Mo 1.b.ii) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, during the
financial year 2014-15, the Holding Company
has written off the book value of investments
made in earlier years in the subsidiary
companies Thalikulam PURA Private Limited
and Tirurangadi PURA Private Limited for the
reasons stated therein. Neither of these
companies has any significant assets or
liabilities. Further, during the financial year 2014-
2015, the Holding Company has also disposed
the shareholding in an associate Company K.V
Apartments Private Limited, which was held anly
for a period of nine months in the financial year
2014-15. In view of the provisions of Accounting
Standard -21 on Consolidated Financial
Statements and Accounting Standard-23 on
Accounting for Investments in Associates, these
entities have been excluded for the purpose of
consolidation, the effect of which is not material.,

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not
modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and
the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements [/ financial information
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requiraments

1. As required b{‘ Section143(3) of the Act, having
regard to the observations stated under Other
Matlers paragraph above, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidat financial statements
have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.
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(e) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesald consolidated
financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,

{e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2016 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of ils subsidiary companies and
associate company incorporated in India, none
of the directors of the Group companies, its
associate company incorporated in India is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Saction 164
(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group including its associate company and
Jointly controlled company, which are companies
incorporated in India, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Reportin "Annexure A",
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditors' Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations giventous ;

i. The consolidated financial statements
disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of
the Group, its associate and jointly
controlled entities — Refer Note No
2.33.1.(c), to the consolidated financial
statements.

ii. The Group, its associate Company and
Jointly controlled entilies did nol have
any material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company. There
were no amounts which were required to
be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Subsidiary
Companies and associate company
incorporated in India.

Place: Kochi-19
Date: 22/06/2016
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ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1(f) UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS"” OF OUR
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INKEL LIMITED, ITS THREE SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES,
ASSOCIATE COMPANY AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANY INCORPORATED IN
INDIA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of INKEL Limited (“hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company") and its
three subsidiary companies - INKEL-KSIDC
Prﬂjects Limited, INKEL-KINFRA Infrastructure
Projects Limited and INKES Trade Centre Limited
(the Holding company and its subsidiary companies
together referred to as “the Group”)its associate
company(MIV Logistics Private Limited) and jointly
controlled company(INKEL-EKK Roads Private
Limited), which are companies incorporated in
India,as of and for the year ended March 31, 20186,
we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Group, its associate
company and jointly controlled company, as of that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
company, its subsidiary companies, ils associate
company and jointly controlled company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
contrals based on the intermnal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essenfial components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Nole on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chariered Accountants of
India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial confrols that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its asseis, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013,
Auditors’ Responsibility

COur responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Group's, its associate company's and jointly
controlled company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Repurling {the “Guidance Mote") issued by the ICAl
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
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the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness.

Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial
reparting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operaling
effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstaternent of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Group's, its associate company's and jointly
controlled company's internal financial controls
system aver financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contral over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statemeants for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures
that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company. (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally acceplted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and associate company, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adeguate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective companies
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considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporling
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

Other Matters

8. Owr aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of
the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls ower financial
reporting insofar as it relates to three subsidiary
companies and one associate company, which are
companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India.

b. As stated in sub-paragraph (b) of the Other
Matters paragraph in our independent audit report,
the financial statements/ financial information of the
jointly controlled company are unaudited and have
been furnished to us by the Management andour
aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Acton
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting
does not include reporting insofar as it relates to the
jointly controlled company.

Place: Kochi-19
Date: 22/06/2016
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INKEL Limited
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH,2016
Particulars Note | As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
No. (In Rupees) (In Rupees)
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
a) Share Capital 2.1 1,63,02,70,000 1,63,02,70,000
b) Reserves and Surplus 2.2 5,73,81,276 9,45,09,533
c) Minority Interast 2.3 5,50,22,839 5,20,35,338
(2) MNon - Current Liabilities
a) Long -Term Borrowings 2.4 12,38,83,170 -
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2.5 4 82,22 264 2.55.57,898
c) Other Long -Term Liabilities 26 2,33,34,231 57.26,240
d) Long - Term Provisions 2.7 24 53,432 11,64,619
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 2.8
i. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 3,133,999 -
ii. Total outstanding dues other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 2,24,96,849 1,15.54,225
(b) Other Current Liabilities 29 12,67,31,747 9,16,52,172
(c) Short Term Provisions 210 12,36,23.473 6,08,05,482
TOTAL 2,21,37,33,280 1,97,32,75,507
Il. ASSETS
(1) Mon - Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
i} Tangible Assels 21 1,14,04,85,086 87,53,02,179
i) Intangible Assets 2.1 3,659,618 93,281
it} Capital Work - in - Progress 212 3,09,53,001 9,02,35,242
b) MNon - Current Investments 213 16,05,00,000 6,46,43,657
c) Long - Term Loans and Advances 2.14 13,43,90,865 10,47,05,393
d) Other Non-Current Assets 215 3.90,34 480 9,28,96,268
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 2.16 - -
b) Trade Receivables oy B 38,14 23,732 20,36,85,211
c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.18 20,43,30,147 40,86,82, 727
d) Shaort - Term Loans and Advances 2.19 8,83,13,647 12,04 85 855
&) Other Current Assets 2.20 3,39,42.804 1,25.45,694
TOTAL 2,21,37,33,280 1,97,32,75,507

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our separate report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. Balakrishnan,
Managing Director
DIN: 00052922

Director
DIN: 00120918

K. Padmadasan,
Company Secretary

Place : Kochi
Date : 22/06/2016
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George Raphael,
Chief Financial Officer

1&2

M.M. Abdul Basheer,

For Varma & Varma

Chartered Accountants

Firm No.0045325

Vijay Narayan Govind

(Partner)

Membership No. 203094
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INKEL Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016
Particulars Note For the year For the year
No. ended 31.03.2016 |ended 31.03.2015
(In Rupees) (In Rupees)
. Revenue
Revenue from Operations 221 52.51,12.,576 46,62,83,742
Other Income 2.22 6,00,26,022 8,42,50,183
Il. Total Revenue 58,51,38,598 55,05,33,925
lll. Expenses:
Cost of land acquired/building/amenities constructed
and disposed (on Long Term Finance Lease
Agreements) 2.23 12,25,47,226 21,08,83,262
Construction and other related expenses 2.24 17,29,78,195 9,45,82,098
Employee Benefit Expense 2.25 3,04,87,611 2,14,53,155
Finance Costs 2.26 1,05,80,313 5,02,399
Depreciation and Amortisation 20 3,81,42,679 3,41,01,978
Other Expenses 2.27 4,83,55,758 6,18,15,877
IV.Total Expenses 42,30,91,782 42,33,38,769
V. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 16,20,46,816 12,71,95,156
VI. Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 4,40,08,196 3,59,79,223
(2) Tax - Prior Years 50,501 -
(3) Deferred tax 2,26,64,368 1,87,97,129
VIl. Profit/(Loss) for the year before Minority Interest,
Share in Net Profit/ (Loss) of Associate 9,53,23,751 7,24,18,804
VIIl. Share of Profit/ (Loss) of Associate Company (6,38,48,322) (3,95,17,210)
IX. Profit/ (Loss) for the year 3,14,75,429 3,29,01,594
X. Profit/ (Loss) attributable to
Owners of the Company 4.22.14,402 3,94,08,169
Minority Interest (1,07,38,973) (65,06,575)
3,14,75,429 3,29,01,594
Xl. Earning per Equity Share: 2.28
(1) Basic 0.26 0.24
(2) Diluted 0.26 0.24
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M.M. Abdul Basheer,
Director
DIN: 00120916

T. Balakrishnan,
Managing Director
DIN: 00052922

K. Padmadasan,
Company Secretary

George Raphael,
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Kochi
Date : 22/06/2016

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Varma & Varma

Chartered Accountants

Firm No.004532S

Vijay Narayan Govind

(Partner)

Membership No. 203094
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2016

NOTE - 2.1 SHARE CAPITAL
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Particulars As at 31-03-2016 As at 31-03-2015
Mumber of Amount Number of Amount
Shares {In Rupees) Shares {In Rupees)

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs,10/- (Rs. 10,000/-) Each | 20,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000
20,00,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000 | 2,00,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

Equity Shares of Rs 10/-(Rs. 10,000/-) Each | 16,30,27,000 | 1,63,02,70,000 1,683,027 | 1,63,02,70,000
16,30,27,000 | 1,63,02,70,000 1,63,027 | 1,63,02,70.,000

2.1.1 Pursuant to shareholders' approval dated 26th August 2015, the equity shares of Rs.10,000/- each of the
Company were subdivided into 1,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, Accordingly, all shares and per share
information in the financial results reflect the effect of sub-division for each of the years presented.

2.1.2 Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares with a face value of Rs. 10/- (Rs.10,000/-)
each. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in
Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed/ declared by the Board of Directors is subject to approval/regularisation of
the shareholders' in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

Particulars Number of Amount as at | Number of | Amount as at
Shares 31.03.2016 Shares 31.03.2015
(In Rupees) (In Rupees)
Equity Shares
As at the beginning of the financial year 16,30,27.000 | 1,63,02.70,000 1,63,027 |1,63.02,70.000
Shares issued during the financial year - - . -
As al the end of the financial year 16,30,27,000 |1,63.02,70,000 1,63,027 [1,63,02,70,000
Particulars of Shareholders holding more
than 5% share in the Company
Govt. of Kerala - 24.84 %
{Previous year 24 .84 %) 4,05,00,000 | 40,50,00,000 40,500 | 40,50,00,000
Bismi Holdings Ltd - .75 %
(Previous year 6.75 %) 1,10,00,000 | 11,00,00,000 11,000 | 11,00,00,000
Shri. Yusuffali M A - 15.13 %
(Previous year 15.13 %) 246,66,000 | 24,6660,000 24 666 | 24.66,60,000
Shri. Varghese Kurian - 6.75 %
{Previous year 6.75 %) 1,10,00,000 | 11,00,00.000 11,000 | 11,00,00,000
Dr.Mohamed Ali - 6.44 %
(Previous year 6.44 %) 1,05,00,000 ( 10,50,00,000 10,500 | 10,50,00,000

FPursuant to shareholders' approval dated 26th August 2015, the equity shares of Rs. 10,000/- each of the Company
were subdivided into 1,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. Accordingly the current year notes have been stated to

this effect.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2016

NOTE - 2.2 RESERVES & SURPLUS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015

Surplus

Opening Balance 9,72,98,524 11,67,54,993

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 4.22.14,402 3,94.,08,169

Closing Balance 13,95,12,926 15,61,63,162

Amount Available for Appropriation

Less: Appropriations

Proposed Dividend ( Refer Note 2.2.1) 6,52,10,800 4.89,08,100

Tax on Proposed Dividend 1.32. 75,385 99,56,538
7,84,86,185 5,88,64,638

Closing Balance 6,10,26,741 9,72,98,524

Less: Minority Interest adjusted (as per Contra) 36,45,465 27,88,991
5,73,81,276 9,45,09,533

2.2.1 The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a dividend of Rs. 0.40/- per share of face value of
Rs 10 each (Rs. 300/- per share of face value of Rs 10,000 each), which is subject to approval by shareholders

in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

NOTE - 2.3 MINORITY INTEREST (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
Share Capital 7,76,39,554 6,47,69,554
Add: Share of accumulated reserves (1,55,23,207) (90,16,632)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year transferred from Statement of
Profit and Loss (1,07,38,973) (65,06,575)
Add: Adjusted against majority interest (as per Contra) 36,45,465 27,88,991
Closing Balance 5,50,22,839 5,20,35,338
NOTE - 2.4 LONG TERM BORROWINGS (In Rupees)

Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
From Banks
Federal Bank Limited (See Note 2.4.1) 9,38,83,170 -
From Other Parties
Unsecured (See Note 2.4.2) 3,00,00,000 -
12,38,83,170 -

2.4.1 In case of the jointly controlled entity - M/s SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP, Loan taken from Federal Bank,
sanction date - 23.04.2015, Cash Credit limit- Rs 24 crore.

2.4.2 The above interest free loan was sanctioned by the State Level Export Promotion Committee(SLEPC) under
the Assistance to States for developing Export Infrastructure and other Allied Activities(ASIDE) Scheme
implemented by Kerala Industrial Infrastructure Development Corporation(KINFRA) acting as the Government of
Kerala appointed Nodal agency. The loan is repayable in three annual instalments of Rs. 1 crore each starting from
the fourth year of disbursement, to be paid before 31st March 2019, 31st March 2020 & 31st March 2021
respectively.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2016

NOTE - 2.5 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

A. Deferred Tax Liability
Opening Balance
On excess of net book value over Income tax written

down value of fixed assets 5,61,64,244 2,62,61,686
B. Deferred Tax Assets
On disallowances 79,41,980 7,03,788
4,82,22,264 2,55,57,898
NOTE - 2.6 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES (In Rupees)

Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
Security Deposits 69,53,240 57,26,240
Lease Premium received in advance 1,60,74,696 -
Retention & Earnest Money Deposit 13,06,295 -
2,33,34.231 57,26,240
NOTE - 2.7 LONG TERM PROVISIONS (In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Provision for Employee Benefits

- Provision for Leave Encashment (See Note 2.29) 24,53,432 11,50,132
Other Long Term Provision - 14,487
24,53,432 11,64,619

NOTE - 2.8 TRADE PAYABLES (In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Trade Payables ( See Note 2.8.1)

|. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small
enterprises

ii. Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises &
small enterprises

3,13,999 -
2,24,96,849 1,15,54,225
2,28,10,848 1,15,54,225

2.8.1 The company has taken steps to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro enterprises and
small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Intimations
have been received from one supplier regarding their status under the said Act as at the year end, based on which,
principal amount unpaid to such supplier as at the year end aggregating to Rs. 3,13,999/- (Rs. Nil) has been
included under Trade Payables. In the opinion of the management, the impact of interest, if any, which may be
payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act, is not expected to be material.
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NOTE - 2.9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
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{In Rupees)

Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
Accounts Payable- Capital 6,77,21873 44 82,170
Lease hold Premium received in Advance 3,33,56,248 7.02,10,910
Advance From Customers/Clients 7.85,130 23,91,550
Retention Money payable 1,36,85,396 48,32.824
Statutory Dues 1,02,60,013 60,02,702
Security Deposit / Earnest Money Deposit 4.76,871 35.01,510
Unclaimed Dividend 3.25.0086 2.30,506
EKK Infrastructure Ltd - towards expense 1.21.210 -
12,67,31,747 9,16,52,172

NOTE - 2.10 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS (In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Provision for employee benefits

- Provision for Leave Encashment (See Mote 2.29) 20,38 319 14,11,845
- Provision for Gratuity (See Note 2.29) - 3.13,046
Proposead Dividend 6,52,10,800 4,89.08,100
Tax on Proposed Dividend 1,32,75,385 899,56,538
Provision for Income Tax 4,08,34,925 2,15,953
Provision for Capital Expenditure for Long Term Finance Lease 22,64 044 -
(See Note 2.10.1)
12,36,23,473 6,08,05,482
2.10.1 Details of Provisions
In case of the Company
Nature of Provision Balance as at Additional Amounts Unused Balance
01.04.2015 Provision used/changed | amounts as at
during the year | during the year | reversed | 31.03.16
Frovision for Capital Expenditure
for Long Term Finance Lease - 2264044 - - | 2264044
NOTE - 2.12 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS {In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Projects under implementation

3,09,53,001

9,02,35,242

3,09,53,001

9,02,35,242

of
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2016
NOTE - 2.13 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
a) Investments in Equity Instruments
{Un-quoted, Trade, at cost)
I} In Associate companies
-MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd
1,18,29,714 (1,18,29,714) Equity Shares of Rs.10/~each,
Opening Balance 6,41.43 657 10,57 34 348
Less: Unrealised Profit on Consultancy Income (2,95,335) (20,73,479)
Less: Share of Profit/ (Loss) of Associate (See Note No, 2.13.2) (6,38,48,322) (3,95,17.210)
Closing Balance - 6.41,43 657
ii) In Others
- KV Apartments Pvt Ltd (Associate till 31.12.2014) 5,00,000 5,00,000
50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each,
fully paid up
b) Investments in Preference Instruments
(Un-quoted, Trade, at cost)
i) In Associate companies
- MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd
1,60,00,000 (Nil) Optionally Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up 16,00,00,000 -
Total investments (a) + (b) 16,05,00,000 6,46,43,657
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 16,05,00,000 6,46,43,657

2.13.1 Having regard to the plans for future operations of the associate company and the realizable value of assets
owned by the said Company, the management is of the opinion that there is no permanent diminution in the value of
investment in preference shares.

2.13.2 The Company's accumulated share of losses in the consolidated financial statements of the associate
company Mfs MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd exceeds the carrying amount of the investment and hence the investment in
Associate company is reported at nil value in accordance with Accounting Standard — 23 on Accounting for
Investments in Associates in Consclidated Financial Statements as prescribed by Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006,

NOTE - 2.14 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES {In Rupees)

Particulars As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
Advance for Capital Assets 589,27.500 17.10,000
Security Deposits 15,682,490 32,771,890
Advance to Kerala State Industrial Enterprises Lid towards
proposed Joint Venture Infrastruclure Project - 1,21,00,000
Income Tax (Net) 7.00,50,148 3,26,23,403
Advance to Related Parties
- SEGURO - INKEL Consortium LLP 568,30, 727 5,50,00,000
13,43,90,865 10,47,05,393
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2016

NOTE - 2.15 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

(In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Trade Receivables
{Unsecured Considered good )

-Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they wera due for paymeant

2,05,73,000

9,27,52 268

-Others (See Note 2.15.1)

Earnest Money Deposits 2,25,000 -

Security Deposits 66,96,000 =

Advance Income Tax and TDS 4,62 605 -

Fixed Deposit with Banks (See Note 2.15.2) 1,098,323 875 -

Other Mon Current Assets 1,44,000 1.44,000
3,90,34,480 9,28,96,268

2.15.1 Trade Receivables include Rs. Nil (Rs.9,27,52,268/-) due from Kerala Academy for Skills Excellence
(KASE), a Government of Kerala owned private limited company; in which a director of INKEL Limited is a director.

2.15.2 Balance with Fixed Deposit Accounts for Rs.1,09,33,875/- (Nil) held under lien with a maturity period of more

than 12 menths,

215.3 In case of the jointly controlled entity - M/s SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP, balance with Fixed Deposits
Accounts for Rs 2,42 97 500/-(Nil) held under lien with a maturity period of more than 12 months.

NOTE - 2.16 INVENTORIES

(In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Land and Building held on long term finance |ease
Opening Balance

21,08,83,262

Add: Additions during the year 12,2547 ,226
Less: Disposed during the year 12,25,47,226 21,08,83 262
Closing Balance - -
NOTE - 2.17 TRADE RECEIVABLES {In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Trade Receivables
{Unsecured Considered good )

-Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date

thay were due for payment 5925622 3,73,038
-Others( See Mote 2.17.1) 37,54,98,110 20,33,42,175
38,14,23,732 20,36,85,211

2171

Trade Receivables include Rs.58,35872/- (Rs.53,82,737/-) due from MIV L

istics Private Limited,

Rs.10,15,37,226 (Rs. Nil) due from Kerala State Industrial Development Corporation (KSIDC),a Government of
Kerala owned private limited company in which a director of the Company is a director and Rs.9,30,82 680/- (Rs. Nil)
due from Kerala Academy for Skills Excellence (KASE), a Government of Kerala owned private limited company; in
which adirector of the Company is a director.

2.17.2 Incase of the Subsidiary Company - M/s INKEL - KSIDC Projects Limited, trade receivables includes dues
forlease premium,

2.17.3 In case of the jointly controlled entity - M/s SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP, trade receivables is dues from
Government authorities towards construction of bridges,
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2016
NOTE - 2.18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 | As at 31.03.2015
Cash on Hand 13,088 7.913
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts 713424 21,24 814
In Fixed Deposit Accounts 20,36,03 635 40,65,50,000
20,43,30,147 40,8682, 727

2.18.1 Earmarked Balances:

a. Balance with banks in Current Accounts include earmarked balances for unpaid dividend Rs.18,500/-
{Rs.18,500/-) for the Financial Year 2009-10, Rs.1,79,606/- (Rs.2,30,948/-) for the Financial Year 2013-14 and

Rs.1.26,900/- (Nil} for the Financial Year 2014-15.

2,18.2 Balance with banks in Deposit Accounts include Rs. 50,000/- (Rs. 2,50,000/-) held with a maturity period of

more than 12 months.

2.18.3 Balance with banks in Deposit Accountincludes Rs. 5,34,61 396/- (Rs. 2 50,000/-) held under lien.

NOTE - 2.19 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(In Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Loansfadvances to related parties
SEGURO - INKEL Consortium LLP
INKEL - EKK Roads Private Ltd

Others:

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Earnest Money Deposits

Balances with Government Authorities

Advance to Suppliers/Contractors

Advance to employees

Others

NOTE - 2.20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

2,07,20437 5.33,53.612
1,14,448 -
2,01,28,970 2,06,06,155
12,775,000 -
3.96.41,372 45475769
25,85,320 953,377
348,000 08,942
35,00,000 -
8,83,13,547 12,04,85,855
(In Rupaes)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Interest Receivable

Prepaid expenses
Mabilisation/Secured Advance
Others

1,50,00,323 86,39, 483
3,61,785 340173
1.42.11,459 "
43,869,237 35,66,038
3,39,42 804 1,25,45,694
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

NOTE - 2.21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
2015 -16 2014 - 15
Income from disposal of land and building
{On Long Term Finance Lease) 284793715 33,90,33,880
Construction Income 20,57.88 651 10,12.05,000
Share of Course Fee Received 1,13.00,301 h2 34,725
Income from Operating Lease 1,01,47 680 B8,12,180
Income from Project Management Services (Refer Note 2.21.1) 83,99 901 101,189,561
Common Amenity Charges 46,682,328 18,78,396
52,51,12,576 46,62,83,742

2.21.1 Government of Kerala, Department of Treasury, Trivandrum has entrusted the work of modernising and
renovaling existing treasuries and construction of new treasury buildings under agreements to the company, at
various locations in the State of Kerala. As per the said agreements, read with Government of Kerala on guidelines
on this matter (for executing civil works) , the company is entitled to the total sum of Rs.4,50,921/- (Rs.11,569,373/-)
as Centage Charges for the year, at agreed rates, which is recognised as income, and included in income from
Eruject management services in the statement of profit and loss for the year. Expenses incurred during the year by

ShL, who was engaged as construction agency for the works by the Company for such confracts and by other
contractors engaged by the Company agaregated to Rs. 74,07 478/- (Rs.1,96,90,349/-) has been reimbursed to
them out of the deposits receivedireceivable from Government of Kerala for the works. Consultancy charges
payable to BSNL at agreed rates has been recognized as expenditure.

NOTE - 2.22 OTHER INCOME (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
2015 - 16 2014 -15

Interest Income 523,92 516 8,12,76,927
Guarantee Fee Received 7.,55,167 -
Profit on Sale of Assets 68,861 1,711,114
Liguidity Damages 40,000 6,31,605
Interest on Lease Premium 31,14,816 -
Interest on Secured Advance 527 276 -
Interest on Mobilisation Advance 5,98,609 -
Interest on Fixed Deposit/Bank 10,10,564 -
Agricultural Income 2.78,697 -
Miscellaneaus Income 12,389,516 21.70.537

6,00,26,022 8,42,50,183
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

NOTE - 2.23 COST OF LAND ACQUIRED/BUILDING/AMENITIES CONSTRUCTED AND DISPOSED

(On long term finance lease agreements)

(In Rupees
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
2015 -16 2014 -15
- Cost of Land 3,99,30,539 3,77,95,270
- Cost of Building/Plant and Equipment 8,47,52,643 17,30,87,992
- Cost of Amenities 22,64,044 -
12,25,47,226 21,08,83,262
NOTE - 2.24 CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER RELATED EXPENSE (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
2015 -16 2014 - 15
Construction Expenses - Sub Contract il e 51e) 8,67,34,789
Labour welfare cess 2,03,677 11,35,800
Value Added Tax 16,47,168 10,32,509
Upfront Fee - 56,79,000
17,29,78,195 9,45,82,098
NOTE - 2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
2015 -16 2014 - 15
Salaries & Allowances 2,76,08,899 1,92,50,085
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 14,86,254 14,72,720
Staff Welfare Expense 13,92,458 7,30,350
3,04,87,611 2,14,53,155
NOTE - 2.26 FINANCE COSTS (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
2015-16 2014 -15
Interest Expense 1,05,80,313 5,02,399
1,05,80,313 5,02,399
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NOTE - 22T OTHER EXPENSES
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(In Rupsaes)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
2015 - 16 2014 - 15
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activity
ISee Note 2.27.1) 211,825 .
Agricultural expenses 17,458,046 -
Project Management Services Expenses 48,03,371 49,608,078
FPower & Fuel 36,985,561 G 54,414
Rent 34, 63,360 27,778,424
Repairs & Mainienance 50,288,480 12,098,523
Insurance 1,15,388 122,934
Fayment to Auditors
Statutony Audit 2.88,000 2,18,500
Taxation Service &7.500 40,000
Ciher Services 1,24,000 1.02.426
Reimbursement of expensas 11,258 15,210
Meeting expenss 15,477,022 23,65 041
Sitting fee io Directars 785,205 322,500
Bank charges & interest 512,087 .
Consideration for Manpower services 45,113,925 a2,20,57T1
Hostel Running and Course expenses 12.41.234 11,15,0111
Advertisement & Publicity 83,996,504 17,94 555
Lass on Sale of assets 1,798,867 3,163
Membership/ Subscription o Professional bodies 168,494 44 776
Postages, Telephane and intemet charges 9,856,710 800,324
Printing amd Staticneny 255,681 2,53,480
Professional Charges & Legal Fee 15,97 466 12,31.469
Rates & Taxes 168,81,504 27,95 504
Staff Recruitment Expense 6,24, 772 7,76, 540
Traveling & Conveyance 42,34 824 4327 800
Trade Invesimeants written off - 1,68.81,891
Expenditure on projects written off 4.11,669 33,236,351
Guaraniee Commission 80,500 -
Buginess Promotion Expense 1,654,408 -
Predncorporation Expensa 200,259 G, 74,932
Preliminary Expense - 26,50,180
Miscelianecus Expanses 735,005 a,22 208
4,83,55,758 6,18,15877
NOTE - 2.27.1. Note on Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility activities
iy Gross amount required o be spent during the vear B 17.63,000/- { Rs 9,57 400)
i) Amount spent during the year In cash Yel i be pakd In Cash
= Construction/acquisition of any asset . .
- an purposes other than above 211,825
211,825
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

NOTE - 2.28 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars For the reur ended | For the raar ended
2015 - 16 2014 - 15
Profit/ (Loss) after tax {In Rs.) 4,22 14 402 3,04,08,169
Weighted average number of Equity shares of Rs 10/-
(R3, 10.000/-) each (fully paid up) - (See Naote 2.1.1) 16,30, 27,000 16,3027, 000
Baslc and Diluted Eamings Pear Equi:g =hare- In Rs,
(Face Value of Share- Rs.10 each) - See MNate 2.28.1 0.26 0.24

2.28.1 Previous year figures have been recast pursuant o sub-division of the face value of eguity shares of the

Company from Rs. 10,000/ each to Rs. 10/- each during the year

Note Mo. 2.29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(Dhsclosure under Accounting Standard 15 —"Employes Banafils', Ravised 2005)

2.28.1 Defined Contribution Plans
Incase of Holding Company - INKEL LIMITED

Diuring the yaar the company has recognized Rs. 8,21 033 -(Previous Year Rs. 7,83, 228/-) in the Staleament of Prafit

and Loss on account of defined confribution plans.

In case of Subsidiary Company - INKEL-ESI0DC PROJECTS LIMITED
Curing the year the company has recognized Rs.1,81,630/4{Pravious Year Mil-} in the Statemant of Profit and Loss

on account of defined contribution plans.

2.28.2 Defined Benefit Plans
Incase of Holding Company -INKEL LIMITED

Gratuity (Funded)

{i} | Actuarial Assumptions 3ist March, 2016 d1st March, 2015
Discount Rate 8.00% p.a. 8.00% p.a.
Rate of returm on plan assats Mot Applicable hot Applicable
Compensation escalation rate * 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Muortality rate Indian Lives Indian Livas

Martality[1984-1996] | Mortality{1994-1996]
Liltirnate Tabla Liltimate Table

*The assumption of fulure salary increases takes into aceount the infiation, seniority, promotions and other refevani

factors such as supply and demand in the employment market

{In Rupeas)
(ii}| Reconcliation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation at the Baginning of the year 23,657,549 18,16,413
Current Service Cosl 3,865,837 5.25,145
Intaras! Cost 204,077 1,168,319
Aciuarial (gain)icss (78.620) 1,11, 182
Banefits Paid {1,87.699) {2.11.510)
Curtailmants - -
Settlemenls - -
Present vaiue of obligation al the end of the year 26,82 144 23.57,549
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{In Rupsas)
{lii)| Reconcillation of fair value of plan assets : 31st March, 2016 | 31zt March, 2015
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 20,44,503 11,06, 768
Expected refurn on plan assets 1.63,560 1,562,640
Actuarial gain/{loss) 1.23.033 {1,09.357)
Coniributions 8.19,064 8,94 452
Benefits pald (1,59,891) .
Aesels distributed on settiement . -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 29,090,269 20,44 503
[In Rupees)

(iv)| Net [AsseilLiability recognised in the Balance Sheet
as at year end.;

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Present value of obligation 25,82, 144 24,57 .549
Fair value of plan assets 29,80 260 20,44 503
MNet present value of unfunded obligation recognised as
[asseflliability in the Balance Sheet (3,08,125) 3,113,045
{in Rupaes)
(v} | Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lou: 3st March, 2016 J31st March, 2015
Current Service Cost 3.86,837 525,145
Interest Cost 204,077 1.16.318
Expected return on plan assets (1,63,560) (1,52,640)
Actuarial (gain) floss recognised in the period (201,653} 2,200,520
Past Service Cost - -
Curtailment cost = =
Sattlement cost - -
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss 225701 T.08,363

Leave Plan (Unfundecd)

(i) | Actuarial Assumptions

31st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Discount Rate B.O0% p.a. 8.00% p.a,
Rate of return on plan assets Mot Applicable Mot Applicable
Compensation escatation rate * 500 p.a. 2.00% p.&
Martality rate Indian Lives Indian Lives
Mortality[1984-1996] | Mortality[1994-1996]
Uitimate Tabile Ultimate Table

*The assumplion of fulure salary increases takes Into account the inflation, senkority, promaticns and oher redevant

faclors such as supply and darmand in the employrmant market.
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{In Rupaas)
(il)| Reconcillation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2016 315t March, 2015
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 2452295 19,892,020
Current Service Cost 13,116,083 748,057
Interest Cost 248827 1,686,324
Actuarial (gainVoss 5,858,205 33,235
Benefils Paid {4,12,902) 15.11,341)
Curtailmenis L .
Seltilements . .
Present valee of obligation at the end of the year 42,92 508 24,52 285

(In Rupees)

(i}

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets :

J1st March, 2016

J1ist March, 2015

Fair value of plan assets at the baginning of the year
Expected refum an plan assets

Actuarial gainf{loss)

Caoniributions

Benefits paid

Assels distributed on seftflement

Fair value of plan assels at the end of the year

(In Rupees)

(iv)

Net (Asset)/Liabllity recognised In the Balance Sheet
as at year end:

J1st March, 2016

31st March, 2015

Present value of obligation 42 92 508 24 52,295

Falr value of plan assets . .

Nel present value of unfunded chligation recognzed as

(assetiliability in the Balance Sheet 42,92 508 24,52 295
(In Rupees)

(v

Expenses recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss:

31st March, 2016

J1st March, 2015

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected retum on plan assels

Actuanal (gain} loss recognised in the period
Fast Service Cost

Curtailmeant cost

Seftlement cost

Total expenses recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

13,168,083
2,48 827

6,688,205

2253115

748,057
1,808,324

33,235

9,71,618

The abowe disclosuras ars based on information cerdified by the indepandent actuary and raliad upon by the
auditors.

A
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Gratuity (Funded)
{i} | Actuarial Assumptions 31st March, 2016
Discount Rate {per annum) B.00% p.a.
| Rale of return on plan assels Mot Applicabla
Compensation escalabion rate * 5.00% p.a.
Mortality rate Indian Lives Morizlity[1994-18496]) Utimata

*The assumption of fulure salary increases takes into account the infiafion, seniority, promotions and othear relavant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

{In Rupeas)

(i}

Reconciliation of present value of obligation:

st March, 2016

Present value of obligation at the bagnnlng_c:fuu year

Current Service Lost 7,858
Inferest Cost 314
Actuarial (gainiloss 8,203
Benefits Paid (3,685)
Curtaliments -
Settlemeants -
Present value of obligation al the end af the year 9,651
(In Rupees)

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets :

J1st March, 2016

Fair value of plan assats at the beginning of the year

Expacied return on plan assets

Actuanal gamd(loss)

Contributions TH AQE
Banafits paid [36E85)
Assets distnbuted on setlament -
Fair value of plan assets at the and of the year 281
{In Rupees)

(iv)

Mat (AssetlLiability recognised in the Balance Sheet

as at year end; 3 st March, 2016

Present value of abligation 56591

F'alr value of plan assets T8N
present value of unfunded obfigation recognised as

{aﬁat]fllabnllly in the Balance Sheel (6:3.120)
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(In Rupeas)

(¥} | Expenses recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss: st March, 2016
Current Senvice Cost 7,858
Interest Cost 314
Expected return on plan assets -
Actuarial {gain) loss recognized in the period 6,203
Fast Service Cost -
Curtaifment cost -
_Settiement cost - -
Total expenses recognized in the Statement of

Profit and Loss 14,376

Leave Plan (Unfunded)

(i} | Actuarial Assumptions 31st March, 2016
Discount Rate {per annum) 2000 p.a,
Rate of retlm on plan assets Mot Applicable
Compensation escalation rate © 5.00% p.a,
Mortality rate Imdian Lives Mortality] 1984-1506] Litimate

*The assumplion of fulure galary increases (akes into acoount the inflation, sensority, promations and olher redevant

factars such as suppdy and demand in the employment marked.
{In Rupeas)

(i} | Reconciliation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2016

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year .
Current Senvice Cost 1,852,706
Interest Cost 6,112
Actuarial {gain)floss 40,335
Benefits Paid -
Curtaiiments
Settlements -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1,099,243

{In Hupess)

(i) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets : 31st March, 2016

Fair value of plan assels al the beginning of the yvear
Expecied ralurn on plan assels

Actuarial gain/(loss)

Contributons

Banafits paid

Aszate disinbubed on sattemant

Fair value of plan assets al the end of the year
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(In Rupees)

{ivl| Met (Asset)/Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

as at year end: 31st March, 2016
Presant valua of obligation 1,899,243
Fair value of plan assats =
Met present value of unfunded obligation recognhized as
{assetpliability in the Balance Sheet (1,89,243)
{In Rupeses)

(v)

Expenses ne nized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss:

31st March, 2016

Current Service Cost

1.52,796

Interast Cost

6.112

Expacted retum on plan assels

Actuarial (gain} floss recognized n the pericd

Past Serace Cost

40,335

Curtaulment cost

Settlement cost

Total expenses recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

1.99,243

The above disclosweres ara based on information certified by the independant actuary and relied upon by tha
auditors. Upio the previous vear, the liahilily was being assessed on estimated gross undiscounied basis, sinca
eligibla employeeas baing small in numbsar and hence thera are no cormesponding disclosures for the previous year.

MNote -2.30

Disclosure of transactions with Related Parlies as required by Accounting Standard — 18 on Related Party
Disclosures as prescribad by Companias (Accouniing Standards) Rules, 2006.

A, | Related parties and nature of relationship

.| Thalikulam PURA Private Limiled Subsidiany Company

il. | Tirurangadi PURA Private Limited Subsidiany Company

ill. | MV Logistics Private Limited Associate Campany

v, | KV Apartments Private Limited Associale Companyitil 31,12.2014)

v. | SEGURO-INKEL Consorlum LLP Jalntly Controlied Entity

wi. | INKEL- ERK Reads Private Limitad Jolntly Controlled Entily

vil. | Seguro Foundations and Structures Private Limited | Enterprise having substanial interest in tha

L Jeintly Controllad Entily

will.] ‘KSIDC Limited Enterprise having substantial interast in (ha
Subsidiary Company - INKEL-KSIDC Projects
Lirnited

ix, | KINFRA Limited Enterprise having substantial interest in the

Subsidiary Company - INKEL-KINFRA
Infrastnschig Propacts | nnited

Kay Managertal Personnel
Mr. T Balakrishnan

Managing Director of the company
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

E. Description of Transactions {In Rupees)
Subsidiary Company/ Key Managerial
Mature of Transaction Associate Company! Persocnnel Total
Jointly controlled entity
Income
1  lncome;
a. pact Mansgement Sanaces
M Logistics Private Limited 749012 - T a9012
(52,58,634) - (52,58,634)
SEGURD - INKEL Consortium LLP 107,056,014 - 1,07,05,014
b. Gurantee Commission Recaived
MY Logisiics Private Limited - -
[35,00,000) 135,00,000)
SEGURD - INKEL Consortium LLP 13, 73,031 = 13,773,031
€. Scrap Sales
MY Loaistics Private Limited a7 707 - a7, 707
2 |Interestincome from Loans/Debentures
KV Apariments Private Limited - - -
{2,66,56,479) - | 12,66,56,479)
SEGURD - INKEL Consortium LLP 1,65,92,206 - 1,65,02206
(48.21,085) - (48,21,085)
Expenses
1 Remuneration to Managing Director 35,19,781 36,159,781
= 136,34, 580) (36,34.580)
2 Sub Contraci Expenses 38,02,83,000 - 38,02 83,00
(19,27 43.978) = | 119,27,43.978)
Loans and Advances
1 KV Apariments Private Limited
Sale of shares in the Company - - -
(40,00,000) - (40,00,000)
2 SEGURQ - INKEL Consortiurm LLP
- Loan/Advances given 5,164,225, 700 - 65,64 25,780
{18,25,77,501) - | §18.25,77,501)
- LoantAdvances recovered 13,93.45 137 - 13,93.45,137
Investments
1 KV Apariments Private Limited 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
{5,00,000) {5,00,000)
2 MV Logistics Private Limited 27 8297 140 - 27.82.97.140
(Inciuding preference shares) (11,82.897,140) (11,82,97,140)
3 SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 93,87 675 . 93,87 .675
(including share of profit) (34 40 268) . (34,40 268)
4 [NKEL EKK Foads Private Limited 30,000 . 30,000
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 231.03.2016

B. Description of Transactions {In Rupees)
Nature of Transaction Rirocamcomant || Feconse | os
Jointly controlled entity
Guarantee glven
1 MV Logistics Privale Limited 23.19,74.071 23,19,74,071
{45, 50,00,000) (45, 50, 00, 000
2 SBEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 24.00,00,000 24.00,00,000
4 INKEL - EKK Roads Private Limited £4,00,000 64,000,000
Receivables
1 MBIV Logistics Private Limited 5835872 58,35, 872
53,82.737) (53.82.737)
2 SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 14,27.22,458 14,2722 458
(19,70,06,567) (19,70,08,567)
3. INKEL - EEK Roads Private Limited 1.63.497 163,487
4. K3IDC Limited 4238237 42358237
{32, 78,538) [32,78.638)
5 KINFRA Ltd 1,44,.000 144,000
(1,44,004) (1.44,000)
6 Seguro Foundations and Structures
Private Limited 2.81.56.624 2.81,56,624
Payables
1  Seguro Foundations and Structures
Private Limited £2,66,99 456 2,66,99,404
(44,33 550) (44.33,6550)

Maote: 1, Transactions in the nature of cument account transactions have nof been included
£. Transactions with the Jeintly Controfied Entity are prior to eimination

Mote - 231

In case of the company and its subsidiaries and its jointly controlled antity:

The companias are engaged in providing infrastruciure iBcilities and athar servicas in conneclion with infrastruciiene
projects. in the opindcn of the management, this is tha only primary reportable sagment within the meaning of
Accounting Standard-17 notified by the Companiss (Accounting Slandards)HRules, 2006,

In case of the associate company :

The company has during the year a single segmanl namely "LOGESTICS". Tharafora the company's businss does
not fall under different sagments as defined by A5-17 "Sagmental Reporting "isswed by 1CAL

Mote - 2.32.1

In case of the subsidiary company INKES Trade Centre Limited:
The company has entarad agreament with KSIE Lid for devealoping of land at Thampanoor and leass pramium is

amortisad during the period undear reniaw.

Pracperative expensaincurmad will be allocated to tha assets at the time of capitalization.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

Mote -2.32.2
In case of the subsidiary company INKEL-KINFRAINFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS LIMITED:

The company has entered a?lr::_amemwllh KiNFRA 8z perGovt, Order Mo, 11TE2009010 dt 31-08-09 for developing
of 3.37 acres of land at Ve lyll and 85 acres at Hamanattukara under long term lease for 90 years. Pending
execution of the agreements till date no leass premium is amortised during the penod under reviaw,

Mote-2.32.3
In case of the subsidiary company INKEL-KINFRA INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS LIMITED:

t.lnmnnr!ised amaourt of lease premium in the books of the company were Rs 3735.30 takh (Previous Year 3869, 70
akh)

Zervice tax input credit receivables is shown as balance lying with Gowvi Authorities under Current asset In
accordance with the service tax rules

Mote - 2.33 Contingent Liabilities not provided for : (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015

. In case of the Company
a) Corporste guarantee issued in favour of -

- MIV Logistics Private Limited 23,19,74.0M 253730812

- SEGURO-INKEL Consariium LLP 24,00,00,000 -
b} Bank guarantee issued in favour of -

- INKEL-EKK Roads Privaie Limited 64, 00,000 -
¢l Claims fowards Bullding Tax 30,185,979 28,565,835

II. In case of the the subsidiary company
INKEL - KSIDC Project Limited
a) Interest on unpaid lease premium payable by the
suhsidgg company INKEL - KS|IDC Project Limited

fo KSI 8.05,00,000 8.05,00,000
I, In case of Associate Company MIV Logistics
Private Limited
a) Preference Share Dividend (Payable to Holding
Company INKEL Limited) 1,.7:2,00,000 -
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Note No 2.34 Additional information a3 requived by  paragraph 2 of the General instruclions for Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements io Schadule |1Hothe Companies Act, 2013,

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Mame of the entity Het Assets, ie Total Assets Met Assets, ie Total Assels
- Total liabilities - Total liabilities
Az s % of " Amount A & % of "Amount
consalidated {In Rupeeas]” consolidated {In Rupees)”
met assels net assets
Parent Company B7.891% | 1,53,19,63 548 85.37% | 1,51.67,90. 527
Subsidizanas:
INKEL KSIDC Projects Limited 7.04% 1227 46,8943 B.35% | 71483425980
INKEL KINMFRA Infrastruciure
Prajecls Limitad =01 G0 {1.03,75,564) -0L33% {57 ,80,309)
INKES Trade Centra Lid 1.896% 3.40.98. 923 -0 12% (21,57, 550)
Jointly Gontrolled Entity:
SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 0.54% 93,87 .675 3 15% 34,40 268
INKEL EKK Roads Private Limiled -0.01%: {1.70.258) - -
Associate Company:
Equity fnvestment in MIV Logistics
Provate Limitad 11,82 97,140 11,8287 140
Less: Share of Loss {11.B2 87 140} (541,53 483}
- - 3E61% 6,41.43 857
Minorly Intarest 3.16% 55022 838 2.93% b, 20,135,338
Total 100.00% | 1.74,26,74,115 100.00% | 1,77,68,14, 871

Hame of the entity

For the year anded 31.03.2016
Share in Profit or (Loss)

Far the year ended 31.03.2015
Share in Profit or (Loss)

Pepegrgeons f (Bt il [ e~y ety Wi

Parant Company 400.785% 12.61,45874 312, 54% 10,28, 30,657

Subsidiaries:

INKEL KSIDG Projects Limited 4T 25% (1,48 70,885) -B2.66% | (2.06,15.854)

INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure

Projects Limited =14 B0% (45,95 245) =11.40% [37.62.002)

INKES Trade Centre Lid =20 22% (63,64, 168) =7.68% [25.27.580)

Jaintly Controfied Entity,

SEGURO-INKEL Consortium LLP 18.90% 59,47 407 9.09% 29 90,268

INKEL EKK Roads Private Limited -(.64% [2,00,258) . -

Associals Company

MIV Logistics Private Limiled 202 85% (6,38 48,322) 12011% | ¢3.8517.210)

Blinanty Interest =34.12% (1,07 38,973) <19.78%: (65,06, 575)

Total 100.00% 3,14,75,429 100.00% 3,29,01,594
Wote - 2.35 {In Rupeas)

Capital Commitments

As at 31.03.2016

As at 31.03.2015

Estimated amoun! of confracts remaining to be executad on
capital account and not provided for

3.27.92 688

9.96.85 212

T4
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

Mote-2.36
Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006

Company had scught confirmation from the vendors whether they fall in the category of Micro or Small Enlerprises.
Bla.m:l ﬂi‘l the Information available, the required disclosure for Micro and small enterprises under he above Act is
gl bl

(In Rupees)
As at 31.03.2015

Particulars As at 31.03.2016

a, | Principal Amount remaining unpald But not due as at the
year end

b. | Interest due thereon as at the year end

c. | Interesi pald by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro,
amall & Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 along

with the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the - -
appointed day during the year,

d. | Interest due and payable for the Eﬁﬂﬂu af delay in making
paymeant (which have been pakd bul beyond the appaintad

day during the year) Bul without adding the interes! specified

Hh';tﬁﬂéﬂhEMI Small and Medium Enterpnises Daveloprment

3,13:999

&, | Interest accrured and remaining unpald as at the year end

I. | Further interest remakning due and payabbe evan inthe
sutceeding year, untl such date when the interest dues as
above are actually pald o the small enterprises, -

Mote - 2,37 Dividend Remittances In forelgn currency:-

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Yaar to which dividend relates Financial year Financial year
214-15 2013-2014
Amounl ramitled during the year &6, D0, 000 44 00,000
Mumbar of non residant sharaholders 4 4
Mumber of shares an which dividend was dus 22,000 22000

MNote -2.38

Figuras have been rownded off to the nearast rupse. Pravious year figuras unless othenaise stated are given within
brackets and hava been regrouped and racast whergvar necessary.

T. Balakrizshnan, M.M. Abdul Basheer, For Varma & Varma
Managing Director Director Chariered Accountanis
DEM: DO0S2822 DiIM: D01 20216 Firm Mo.0D45325

K. Padmadasan,
Company Secretary

George Raphasl,
Chief Financial Officer

Vijay Marayan Govind
(Partner)

; Membership Mo, 203054
Place ; Kochi

Date ; 2206/2016
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2016
(In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
'CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Taxation and exceptional items 16,2048 816 12,71.85,156
Adjustments for
Depraciation and Amortisation 2.8142.679 3.41,01,978
[ProfityLoss on sale of Asseiz(Net) 111,006 (1,67 .048)
Interest Income (5,34,03,080) (8,12,76.927)
Interest paid 1,05,80,313 502,309
Liakilities Wissets no Longer required written off . 1.97,20.838
Conversion of fixed assels to current assets 12,02.83,182 21,08,83,262
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 27, 77,60,916 31,09,67,860
Changes in Warking Capital
Adjustments for { increase YWecrease in Operaling Assets
Trage Receivables (17,74,43,186) (18,584,337, 002)
Short term loans and advances 32172308 6,35.98.275)
Chver Current Azsels {1,50,36.270) (36.21,176)
Long term Loans and Advances 1,19.58,773 (5,67 60.851)
Other Non Current Assets 543,24,383 (9,27.52.268)
(9,40,23,962) (40,63,70,502)
Adjustments for increase [ Decrease ) in Operating
Liabiiities
Trade Payables 112,596,623 [B3.57,674)
CHier Current Liabilities (2,82,54 628) 1,31,26,500
Short term Provisions 2577472 17,24 801
Long term Provisions 12,868,813 [15,37.048)
Long Tenm Liabilities 1,76,07,991 6,953,240
44 76,271 76,090,911
Cash generated from Operations 18,82,13,205 {B,77.82,731)
Taxes Paid (4,13,28,075) {4,29.56,451)
Met Cash Used in Operating activities -{A) 14,68,84,130 {13,07.49,182)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital WIP (30,57 ,.81,668) (28.50,84,223)
Proceeds from sale of Fixed assels 1,00,000 2, 70,166
(InvestmentisiSale of Equity shares/Preference Shares 16, 00, 0, 00 40,00,000
(Investments) /(Redemption of Debeniures - 18,57,00,000
Interest received in deposis 4, 70,42 240 833,592,925
MNet Cash Used In Investing activitles -({B ) {41,86,39,429) 82,286,368
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INKEL Limited
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016
{In Rupses)
Particulars Far the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.20186 31.03.2015
C| CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid {4, 58,13,600) (2,89 05 526)
Dividand distribufion tax paid (98.56,538) (51,21,618)
Inta=rest paid {1,05.80,313) (5,02 35949)
Adjustmants fowards minarity interest 1,28, 70,000 130,000
Proceads from Long term Bomowings 12,3883 170 -
Met Cash Generated By Financing Activities - [ C ) 6, 74,02 718 (3,53 099 544)
Met increase in Cash and Cash eguivalents{A+B+C) (20,4352, 580) (15,79,18,858)
Cash and Cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year A0 BE 82 72T 56.66.02 585
Closing Cash And Cash Equivalants 20,43 30,147 40 86 82 727

Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year includes Re.5,34,61,306/- (Rs.2,50,000-) held under lien and
Rs.3.25.006- (Rs 249448/~ deposited n unciaimed dividend account which I3 earmarked for payment of

ilinvitand

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. Balakrizshnan, M.M. Abdul Basheer,
Managing Director Director
DIN: 0052922 DiM- 0120816

K. Padmadasan,
Company Secretary

George Raphael,

Flace : Kochi
Date - 2200652016

Chief Financial Officer

As per our separate report of even date attached

For Varma & Varma

Chartered Accountants

Firm Mo 0045325

Vijay Marayan Govind

{Partner)

Membership No, 203004
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1. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated fimancial stafements relale (o
INKEL Limited (the ‘“Company’), its subsidiany
companies, jainty controfled entify and the Group's
share of profit | loss in its associate company. The
consolidated financial statements have bean
prepared on the following basis:

i. The financial statements ! financial
information of the subsidiary companies, jointhy
controlled entity and associate company used in
the consclidation are draswn upto the sams
reparting date as that of the Company, e, 31st
March, 2018,

i. The financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiary companies have been
combined on a fine-by-line basis by adding
together ke items of assels, lighilities, incomea
and expansas, after eliminating infra-group
balancas, intra-group transactans and resulting
unrealised profits or bosses, unless cost cannot
be recoversd, as per AS 21 "‘Consolidated
Financial Siatamanis’.

iii, The consolidated financial statements
include the share of profit § loss of an associata
entity which has been sccounfed for wsing
‘eguity mathod’ as per AS 23 'Accounting for
Investmenis in Associales in Consofidated
Financial Siatamanis’. Accordingly, the share of

Annual Report
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profit/ loss of the-associate entity (the koss being
restricted to the cost of investment) has been
added fo { deducted from the costof investment.

iv. Share of profit / loss, assets and liabilties in
the jointly controfled entity, which are not
subsidiaries, have been consolidated on a
proportionate basie by considering the book
values of ike items of asseats, ligbilities, ncomes
and expenses (o the extent of the Group's equity
interest in =such entity as per AS 27 "Financial
Reporting of Inferests in Joint Ventures', The
infra-group batances, intra-group transactions
and unrealised profits or losses have been
gliminated o the extent of the Group's share in
the entities,

v. Minority interest in the net psssts of the
consolidated subsidiaries consist of the amount
of equity attributable fo the minarity
shareholders at the date on which investments
in the subsidiary companies were made and
further movements in their share in the equity,
subsequent to the dates of investiments. Met
prafit [ loss for the year of the subsidiaries
attributable to minority interest is identified and
adjusted against the profit after tax of the Group
in arder to amve gt the income attributable fo
shareholders of the Company.

vi, Following subsidiary companies, associaie
company and jointly controllea entity have bean
considered in the preparation of the
consofidated financial statements:

% of Holding and
vating power either
Mame of ihe entity Relationship i or indiractly
through subsidiary as at
31 March, 31 March,
2016 2015
INKEL KSIDC Projects Limited Subsidiary Company T4% Td%
INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Limited Subsidiary Company 74% 4%
INKES Trade Centre Limited Subsidiary Company T4% Td%
SEGURO - INKEL Consortium LLP Jointly Controlled Entity 45% 45%
INKEL - EKK Roads Private Limited Jaintly Controlled Entity 30%% -
MIV Logistic Private Limited Associate Company 39.43% 39.43%

vil, The consolidated financial statements have
bean prepared using uniform accounting policies
for like transactons and othar evenis in similar
circumstances and are prasented to the axient
possibla, in the sama manner a5 the Company's
separata financial statements.
Basis of Preparation

i. The Consofidated Financial Statements of
INKEL Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaras
INKEL-KIMFRA Infrastruciure Projects Limited,
INKEL-KESIDC Projects Limited and INKES Trade
Centre Limited collectively referred to as tha

78

‘group’ and its associate MIV Logistics Privats
Limited and jointly controlled entities
SEGURO—INKEL Consortivm LLP and INKEL-
EKK Roads Private Limited have bean prepared
in accordanca with Accounting Standard - 21
(A5 21). "Consolidated Financial Statements”,
Accounting Standard — 23 (AS 23) "Accounting
far Investments in Associates in Consclidated
Financial Statements” and Accounting Standard
— 2T (A5 27} "Financial Reporting of interssls in
Joint Ventures® notified by the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006

N\
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i, Durirg the Financial Year 201415, the company
has written off the book value of Investrments
made In aarlier years in the subsidiary
companigs Thalikulam PURA Private  Limited
and in Tirurangadi PURA Private Limited as
these companies have nol commenced any
commercial activitbes and there are na plans for
revival, Meither of these companies has any
significant assels or liabdities. Further, the
company has also disposed the shareholding in
an associate enterprize K.V, Apartments Private
Limited, which was hedd only for a period of nine
manths in the Financial Year 2014-15.0n view of
the provisions of Accounting Standard <21 on
Consolidated Financlal Statements  and
Accounting  Standard-23 on Actcounting  for
Investments in Assoclates, these antities have
been exciuded for the purpose of consolidation,
the effect af which is not material.

i, The company had made investment in a Jointly
Confrolled Entity INKEL- EKK Roads Private
Limited during e yaar. The knanctal statements
i financial informalion of the Jointly Controlled
Entity incorporated in the consolidated financhal
staternents ane unacdied and are as cartified by
the Management of the Jointly Controlled Entity.
The Joinlly Cantralled Entity does nol have any
significant azsels or labilites and tha impact of
the net assats and results of tha Jointly
Confrolled Entity in the Consolidated Financial
Statemant is nol considerad material,

. In case of he consolldated finandal statements
of the Azzoclate company Mfs MV Logistics
Private Limited, as stated In the Basis of
Accounting of the Significantaccounting Policies
of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Mis
MIYV Logistics Private Limited, M/s. Seabird
Seaplane Private Limited is  an associate
company of MV Logistics' Private Limited.
Investments in the assoclale company Mis.
Seabird Seaplane Private Limbed is accounted
for using the Eguily Mathod of accounting as lakd
downby Accounting Standard 23 -
‘Accountng for Investment in Associales n
Consolidated Financial Statements”. The
Imvesiment is infially recognized at cost and the
carrylng amoun! & Increased or decreased 190
recognize the Investors' share of profit and loss
of the investes after the date of acquisition. Mo
statulory audit has been conducled by the
associate company M's. Seabird - Seaplane
Private Limited for the year ended 31.03.2016 as
cn date. Tha impact of the financial results of Mis
Seabled Seaplane Private Limited in the
consolidaled financial statemants of Mis INKEL
Limited is not considensd matarial,

¢. Basisof Accounting

The consolidated fnancial stalaments of Lhe
Company have been prepared in .la-::mrdanm wilh
ganerally accepled accounting principles in India
{Indian éAAFg The Company has prepared hese
consolidated financial stalements o comply in all
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materal respects with tha Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Acl, read with
Rula 7 ol the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014,
The consolidated financial statements have baen
prepared on an accrual basis and under the
historical cost convention. The accounting policies
adopled in the preparation of consolidated financial
statements are consistent with these of previous

WRAT,
d. UseofEstimates

The presantation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with the generally accepled
accounting  principles require . estimales and
assumplions 1o be made that affect the réporied
amaunt of assels and Rabllites (including contingant
liabilites if any) as on the date of the consolidated
financial statemants and the reported amount of
revanues and expansas during the reporting perod.
Difference between the actual resull and estimates
are racagnized In the period In which the results ane
Encavn imatariakzad.

@. Fixed Asseots
In case of the company and its subsidiaries:

Land acquired on long term lease arrangemants that
are in the nature aof financial leases are classified
under Foed Assets and amorlised over the leasa
period. Bulldings constructed on such land are
capitalised and depraciated as per company’s
accounting policy. Such land and building are
rectassified and ireated as Curmanl Assals (al Met
Book Valuelwhen the decision to dispose undar
long-term finance leaseas is conclusively taken by tha
management.

Fixed assels ara stated at the cost of acquisition,
which includes laxes, dulies, freight and othar
incidental expensas incurred for bringing the assets
o the working condition required for their Intended
use, less depreciation and impairment in value if any,
iz adjusted.

In case of the associate company MIV Logistics
Private Limited:

Fizxed assets are staled al cost of acquisition il e
date of installation of the assels and improvemeant
thereon.Expansas incurred directly to the cost of
assets wera allocated to specific fixed assets and
pra incorporation costs and costs which are not
specifically |dentifiable to a particular asset were
allocated o all assets in the ratio of costs standing
under sach assel azson 31.03 2016,

Leasa Pramium paid in respect of Land aken on

lpase it laken ender Fixed Assals and is amortized
aver he lease panod,

f. Project Development Expense

In case of the subsidiary INKES Trade Centre
Limited and INMEL-KINFRA Infrastructure
Projects Limited

Expense incurred 0 conneclion with Propact
Developmant are reated as project developmant

axpense pending capilalisation/ adjustment. These
axpanses are shown under capital work in progress.

[4:
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g. Depreciation/fmortization
incase of the company:

Depreciation on fixed assets s provided on Written
Down Value Method an the basis of the useful life in
the manner prescribed as per the Schedule 1l of The
Companies Act, 2013, Leasehold land is amortized
over the duration of the lease. Cost of soffware
treated as Intanglble Assets is amortised over a
period of six years,

in case of the subsidiary INKEL-KSIDC Project
Limitied:

Depreciation on all assels is charged from the date
when the fixed assels are ready for thelr infended
use and upio the month of disposal

Depraciation Is provided on written down value basis
a5 per the useful lives prescribed in Schedule || ofthe
Companies Act 2013 except in case of Buidlding, in
whose case the useful lives have been assessed
lower than the life prescribed In schedule Il to the
CompaniesAct 2013,

in case of the subsidiary INKES Trade Centre
Limited:

Depreciation on the Fixed Assets will be provided on
written down value method at the rales specified
under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 as
amended from time to time,

In caze of the subsidia
Iinfrastructure Projects Limi

Depreciation on fixed assets as and when addad will
be provided in accordance with the Provislons of
Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 201 3.

In case of the associate company MIV Logistics
Private Limited:

Depreciation on all assels is charged from the date
when the fixed assets are ready for their intended
Lse and up to the month of disposal,

Depreciation is provided on written down value basis
as perthe useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il of the
Companies Act Eﬂiaﬂm?'r in the case of Bullding ,
in whose case the useful lives has been assessed
lower than the life prescribed In schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, The difference in useful life is
due to the fact that land |s acquired on Lease basis
for 30 years from Cachin Porl Trust and hencea
remsaining useful life only considared for Building

h. Government Granis/Subsidies
in case of the company:

Government Grants and Subsidies are recognized
when there i reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with the conditions attached io
them and the Granis/Subsidies will be received
Government Grants whose primary condition is that
the Company should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire capital assets are presanted by
deducting tham from the camying value of the asseats.

Government Grants In the: nature of Promoler's
Confribution like Invesiment Subsidy, where no
repaymeant is ordinarily expacted in respect thereod,
are ireated as Capital Reserve

INKEL-KINFRA
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Other Government grants and subsidies are
nized as Income over the periods necessary to

match them with the costa for which they are

intended io compensate on a systematic basis,

In case of jointly controlled entity SEGURO-
INKEL Consortium LLP:

Grants. and subsidies from the government are
recognised when there is reasonable assurance that
(i} the LLP will comply with the cordifions attached o
them, and () the grant/’subsidy is received! will be
received.

. Investments

Non-Current Investments are stated at cost, Decline
in value, if any, which i3 not considered temporary in
nature, is provided for

|-  Revenue Recognition
In case of the company and Its subsidiaries:

Fevenue anzing on disposal of current assefs under
long-term lease arangements that are in nature of
financial leases is recognised in the yearin which the
lease agreements ars entered inta,

Fropartionate income during the pericd of license

ﬁeemem and income from other arangemeanis
ich are in the nature of operating leases, are

recognized as income in the respective years,

Other incomes are recognized on accrual basis
except when there are significani unceriainties,

In case of the associate company MIV Intics
Private Limfited: il Log

Revenue from service is recognized as and. when
services are rendered and related costs are incurmed
in accordance with terms of the contractual
arangement

Interest Income is accounted on accnsal basis,

In case of jointly controlled entity SEGURD-
INKEL Consortium LLP;

Revenue g recognized Dased on percentage of
completion method in accordance with Accounting
Standard- T “Construction Contracts”. Contract
revenue s recognized only 1o the extent of cosls
incumed that are expected to be recovered and
where the oulcome of the contract canmoi be
estimated reliably, no profit is recognized

k. Employee Benefits

In case of the subsidiary companles INKES Trade

Cintri Limited, INKEL-KINFRA Infrastructure

Els Limited and jointl l:untmihd entity
RO-INKEL Consartium

Emp!wee benefits are not prwu:r-ed as the
companies donod have direct emplovees,

In case of the company and its subsidiaries and
assoclate company:

Short Term Employes Benefits

All employes benefits ﬁyahte whally within twelwa
months of rendering the service are classifled as
short-term ﬂmpln#ge benefitz and recognized in the
period in which employee renders the retated
Service,
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Defined Contribution Plans

The companies. have d&hﬂd contribution plans for

employees  comprising Provident Fund, The

contributions palcﬁgarﬂb!a to these plans during the

EEET are charged to the Congolidated Statement of
fit and Loss for the vear,

Defined Benefit Plans: Gratulty {Funded)
In case of the company:

The: company makes contributions 1o the
Employee's Gmoup Gratulty-cum-Life  Assurance
Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The net present value of the obligation for gratuity
benefits as determined on Independent actuarial
valuation conducted annually using the projecied
undt credit method, as adjusted for unrecognised
past services cost, if any, and as reduced by the fair
value of plan assels, is recognised In the accounts,
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised In fudl in
ihe Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period inwhich they occur

In case of the subsidiaries and associate
COmpany:

The company makes contributions to the
Employee's Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance
Scheme of the Lifie rmuranmﬂm‘puratimallndia

Other Ln-:c? term nglu ee beneflits:
Compensated absences{Unfunded)

In case of the company:

The company has a scheme for compensated
absencas for emplovess, the liability of which Is
determined on the basis of an independent actuarial
vahsation carred out & the end of the year, Actuarial
%?Jlns and losses are recognised o full in the

neolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period inwhich they oocur.

I.  Imcome Tax

Imcome tax i3 accounted in accordance  with
.r‘l.cc:nunt:ngaSland-ard on Accounting for Taxes on
Imcome (AS-22), which includes current taxes and
deferred taxes. Deferred Tax assets! Habllites
representing timing differences betwean accounting
income and taxable income are recognised to the
extent considered capable of being reversed in
subsequent years. Deferred tax assels are
recognised only to the extent there is reasonable
ceriainty that suffiicient future taxable income will be
available, except that deferrad tax assets arising due
to unabsorbed depreciation and losses are
recognised if there is a virtual certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be avallable (o reallse the
same.

im. Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in forelgn currencies ane recorded at
the exchange rate prevalling on the date of the
transaction., Monelary assets and labilities
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ﬂutstarhdl at theBalance Sheei date are franslated
cable exchange rates prevalling at the
ar-a The exchange gainfloss arising during the
rlsn?jd sled to lh& onsolidated Statement of

tand Loss.

n. Borrowing Costs

Bormowing costs that are directly attributable 1o the

uisition, construction or production of an asset
that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use are capitalised. Other bormowing
©osts are recognized as expenditure for the penod in
which they are incurred,

o, Earnings pershare

Baslc! diluted eamings per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributabie
o equity shareholders (after deducting atiributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares! dilufive nlial equity shares outstanding
as atthe end of the vear as the case may be,

p. Preliminary Expenses

In case of the subsidiary INKES Trade Centre
Limited:

Preliminary expenses and pre-incorporation
expenses ara fully writien off.

q. Impairment of Assels

The company assesses al each Balance Sheet date
whether there is any indication that an assat may be
impaired. An assel s hentified as impalred, when
the camying wvaloe of the assel exceeds is
recoverable value. Based on such assessment,
impairment loss if any iz recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the
ﬁu_nnnui in which the asset is identified as impalred.
irment loss recogrlsed in the prior
accounting periods is reversed if thera has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

r. Provisions, Contingent Liabilitles and
Contingent Assets

Provisgions are recognised when the company has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, for
which Il i probable thal a cash outfiow will be
required and a refiable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation, Provisions are not
discounted o its present value and are determined
bazed on management estimate required o seitle
the obfigation at the Balance Sheet date. These are
reviewed af each Balance Sheet date and adjusted
to refiect the cormact management estimates.

Contingent Liabllities are discloged when the
company has a possible obligation or a present
obligation and it ks probable that a cash flow will not
be required to setlle the oblgaton,

Contingeni assels -are neither recognized nor
disciosed In the accounts.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Pleassa complate this attandancs slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting hall)
CIN: U45209 L 2007 PLCO204T 1

Door No, T473 ZA-5&6, 2nd Floor, Ajival Complex, Kakkanad, Cochin, Emakulum - BE2030
Fh : D484 6491138, Fax | 0484 2078102

| hereby record my presence at the NINTH ANNUAL GEMERAL MEETING of INKEL Limited
to be held on Saturday, the 24th September, 2016 at 10.30 am at Grand Hotel, MG Road,Cochin

Full name of the Member

Folio No. : No. of shares :

Mame of Proxy

Member's/Proxy's Signature




PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19{3) of the Companies
iManagemeant and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIM: U45209KL200TPLCO204T1
Door Mo, 7473 ZA-5&6, 2nd Floos, Ajival Complex, Kakkanad, Cochin, Emakulum - 8582030
Ph : 0484 6491138, Fax : 0484 2978102

Mama of the member (s5): E-mail Id :

Registered address: Folio Mo :

I'We, being the member (syof ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1) of having e-mail id or failing
him

2} of having e-mail id or failing
hirm

3) of having e-mail id of failing
him

and whose signature(s) are appended below as myfour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and
on mylour behalf at the at the Annual General Meeting of INKEL Limited to be held on Saturday the 24th
September 2016 at 10.20 am at Grand Hotel, MG Road, Cochin and at any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolutions asindicated inthe notice.

Signed this......dayof......... 20....

Signature of Shareholder

signature of first Proxy holder signature of second proxy holder  signafure of thind proxy holder

Mote; This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
CHfice of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Signedthis...... dayof......... 20....

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of first Proxy holder signature of second proxy holder  signature of third proxy holder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective showld be duly complefed and deposited at the Registerad
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencerment of the Meeting.
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Registered Office: Door No. 7/475 ZA-5&6, Ajival Complex,
Post Office Road , Kakkanad, Cochin ~ 682030, india, Phone: 0484 6431138
Emaik deptes@inkelkeralacom Website: wwwinkelin




